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HIS HONOR, JUDGE STRETTON,  Royal Commissioner. 

MR. GREGORY GadANS: 	assisting the Commission* 

MR. E H. E. BARBER: 	on behalf-  of the Forests Commission, 

MR. A. E. KELSO: 	on behalf of the Melbourne and Metropolitan 
Board of Works* 

MR. W. SLATER: 	on behalf of the Forest Officers' Association* 

MR. A* D. HARDY: 	on behalf of the Victorian Branch of the 
Australian Forests League* 

MR. W. SWINDON: 	on behalf of the Bush Fire Brigades 
Association. 

MR. KELSO: In the process of cross-examination yesterday, the matter 

of the milling or otherwise of the Metropolitan Board of 

Works watershed was mentioned* 	I took the question at 

that time as only incidental* 	I have given no evidence on 

the matter, except as incidental to the question of bush 

fires, and the fighting of bush fires. 	I feel perfectly 

certain, however, that if Your Honor considers that is a 

question for the consideration of this Commission, and if 

you desire evidence about it, my Board will not be 
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satisfied merely with the evidence already given. If it is 

to become a question not of bush fires but of the commercial 

use of the Board's watershed )  I must go back to my Board and 

ask what further they wish. If Your Honor can give an indic-

ation in that way, it will be helpful. 

THE COMMISSIONER: I will take my statement as reading into its all 

those safeguards which Mr. Gowans and others suggest I should_ 

preface the r-merks with: my present view is that where 

water supply is concerned, every possible step should be taken 

to avoid contamination, and I should think the introduction of 

men engaged in commercial pursuits into water catchment or 

reservoir areas would be very harmful. 	If anybody would like 

to contest that point I should like to hear than now, to see 

whether we should open up the question again. 

MR. GOWANS: I have given short consideration to the point raised by 

Mr. Kelso, and the way it strikes me is this: the matter would 

only become relevant to this inquiry if it was suggested by 

anybody that the milling of the Melbourne and Metropolitan Board 

area would tend to reduce the fire menace. 	I do not think that 

has been suggested, consequently, as far as I can see, it is not 

relevant. 

MR.. KELSO: I have felt the same way all along, and I .  have not attempted 

to deal with that aspect. 	Because under cross-examination it 

was raised yesterday, I felt it proper to bring the matter before 

Your Honor at present, rather than to say afterwards that we 

should have done so and so. 

THE COMMISSIONER: I think it is an irrelevancy, as Mr. Gowans has pointed 

out. 	At present, I think it is irrelevant to my Commission, 

and, if it were relevant, I am pretty sure that I would be 

inclined to the view I have already suggested. I do not think 

you need worry further about that aspect of it, Mr. Kelso. 

MR. KELSO: Thank you. 	That is satisfactory. 

MR. GOWANS: Before viva voce evidence continues this morning, I 

want to submit as an exhibit a file that I asked Mr. Clark 
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to produce from the Lands Dept. records while he was a 

witness. 	It is the file dealing with the proposed dedic- 

ation as reserved forests of areas in the parishes of 

Nbondurra l  Numbruk, Tanjil East, Boola Boole, and Toongabbie 

North* 	The relevancy of the matter contained in the file 

is this: that Mr. Clark was questioned about co-ordination 

between the Lands Department and the Forests Commission in 

connection with fire protective measures to be carried out: 

on Crown land* 	He said that he knew of one case at all 

events where the matter arose incidentally in connection 

with proposed dedication of certain Crown lands to reserved 

forests* 	This file deals with that matter* There are two 

short reports by Er0 Clark which I desire to read and have 

incorporated in the official transcript. The first report 

to the Surveyor General is dated the 18th of December, 1935, 

and it deals with one of the suggestions. The report is as 

follows:- 

"In connection with forest inspection, the following 

facts present themselves:- 

Alth the exception of some of the harder woods, such 

as ironbark, the best timber grows on the good country* 

Under the existing conditions, the Commission does not 

feel justified in expending money for the protection of 

young timber by the provision of firebreaks, etc* on 

Crown lands. 	Hence its advocacy of straight out 

dedication where valuable stands of timber occur* The 

mere withholding of an area indefinitely does not give 

the necessary tenure to justify great expenditure* 

On the other hand, the Lands Department may not feel 

justified in alienating from production land that without 

the timber would be suitable for settlement. Almost 

invariably land that is suitable for the growth of the 

lighter hardwoods is suitable for agriculture and in 

many cases it is only the economic problem of clearing 

which has prevented selection. 	I would suggest that 

in certain cases land be withheld for stated periods, say, 
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ten or twenty years, subject to review. This would enable 

the Commission to expend money on necessary protection, and 

the land could revert to the lands Department when worked 

out )  or )  in the case of, say, a disastrous fire or if for 

any other reason it became of greater value for settlement 

than for timber growing." 

I desire to refer to one other report submitted by Mr. Clark )  which 

appears in another part of the same file )  in reference to a portion 

of the same area. 	It is dated the 27th of July )  1937, and was 

forwarded to the Surveyor General® 	The report is as follows:- 

"Crown lands - Toongabbie North. 

This area carries only scattered timber of minable 

quality or of use for sleepers, etc. but the poor 

quality timber thereon may be of use for paper 

pulping in the new mills to be erected near Morwell. 

I think the area might be withheld for a period of 

twenty years, or so long as required for paper pulp-

ing. 	As it is not the very best for settlement ) 

 it might)  however, be listed for exchange for suit-

able settlement land." 

The file shows that it was listed for exchange. 	I now ask 

Mr. Barber to produce the corresponding file in the Forests 

Commission, dealing with the same matter. 

MR. BARBER: Before I make any comment on it, I should like an opportunity 

of examining the file. 	I think the obvious thing to do is to 

produce the opposite number in our Department, and then we may get 

somewhere with it. 	Perhaps the file could be formally put in 

as an exhibit, and I could have an opportunity of looking as it during 

the week-end. 

MR. GOWANS: I have no objection to that. 

EXHIBIT 	 EXHIBIT GG .......Correspondence File 	No. 
T105179, Sale district. 

I am admit informed that a discussion took place between the 

heads of the Departments concerned with regard to this very matter 

in order to enable the Forests Comm;  ssion to take protective measures 

on Crown land if it thought fit. 
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REUBEN TOM PATTON,  Sworn and examined: 

MR. KELSO: Your full name is Reuben Tom Patton. 	'that is your 

official position?---I am the senior lecturer in botany 

and agricultural botany at the University of Melbourne. 

For the assistance of the Commission, will you say over what time 

you have had a knowledge of the forests of this State, and, 

in a general sort of way, state your qualifications to 

speak on the matters incorporated in the notes you have 

prepared, and of which I have a copy?---With regard to 

the Victorian forests, I have been making studies of them 

over the past 25 years, with a view to the publication of 

a book which I hope will shortly appear, dealing not only 

with the forests but also with the whole vegetation of the 

State* 	I am a graduate in Forestry at the Harvard 

University. 

I do not propose to question you in detail concerning your statement ) 

 unless you prefer it that way. Would you prefer to go 

through the statement, and simply place your views before 

the Commission in that way?---I should prefer to do it that 

way. 	First of all, if we consider the most complex forest 

we have the mountain ash. 	A mountain ash forests consists 

of several strata or stories* 	There is the tree stratum 

of mountain ash; beneath that there is another stratum of 

small trees, such as musk, hazel, wattle, blackwood, and 

other things* 	Beneath that again, there may be a stratum 

of tree ferns, while below that again there is the ground 

stratum* 	The density of the lower strata is controlled by 

the density of the crown cover of the tree, and partly by 

the location of the forest itself* 'Eucalypt tree forests 

are different from Northern Hemisphere forests which are 

the best developed in the world, in that the leaves, instead 

of being broadside on to the sun, in that way casting a deep 

shadow )  hang side on with the euca4t. The leaf stalk twists 

to an angle of 90 degrees, and thus brings the leaf edge on* 

in the majority of eucalypts that is the case, thus permitting 

a great amount of light to stream through on to the forest floor, 
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That favours the growth of the under stories. By measure-

ments I have made, I have found that approximately 15 per cent. 

of light passes through the crown of mountain ash. 	I am 

not taking that statement as ultimately final, but up to the 

present I have accepted itg 	In the Northern Hemisphere 

forests, and principally so in Germany where it reaches highest 

development, German foresters claim t o intercept 99 per cent 

of the light. 	That means •there is practically no light 

reaching the forest floor and there is no growth at all. Only 

leaves and decomposing plants remain. 	In the fern gullies, 

in the deepest recesses, I have measured down to 1 per cent 

of light reaching the floor. 	The density of the lower growth 

or scrub is a factor on the amount of light reaching that 

forest floor. Fires tend. to destroy the crowns thereby opening 

up gaps between the trees and permitting a greater amount of 

light to gat in, thus favouring the growth of scrub. On the 

other side of the world there is practically no light reaching 

the floor to permit this undergrowth, hence you only have the 

trees° 	The effect of this strata, or the several layers - as 

I again remind you, the several layers are affected by the initial 

amount of light coming through the forest crown - results in 

the temperatures being materially affected. 	I produce some 

graphs that were taken in 1936 in SWUM r and winter. They belong 

to another series of graphs and they set out that there is only 

a minor fluctuation in the temperatures in the forests, whereas 

where the crown cover is complete, there is a very small range 

of temperature. One series was taken right in bracken fern. 

The temperatures in bracken fern rise very high during the day, 

favouring a forest fire if it comes along; whereas, where there 

is a complete crown cover, the temperature range is very low, 

hence the ground stratum is not heated to favour fire conditions. 

Is it also a fact that the actual temperature is very low inside the 

forest, not only the temperature range?---I do not follow your 

point* 
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I understood you to say there is a small range of temperatureinside 

the forest )  but is it not also a fact that the actual 

temperature is low?---Yes, actually the temperature is 

lower than outside. The graphs were taken with automatic 

thermometers run for a week on end. The difference in 

height in two theremameters was 200 feet at one area* In 

order to get comparable conditions, we had to go inside 

the forest, but the total difference in elevation was only 

200 feet, and the thermometers were 200 yards away from One 

another )  therefore there is no factor entering other than 

the conditions of the forest. 

Secondly, these lower stories, or the ground cover 

permits the conservation of moisture* Vie know that without 

measurement, because we know we must go to the forest itself 

for the collection of fungi in connstionwith our classes. 

There is no fungi where there is only bracken fern* It is 

too dry for one thing )  and the moisture is not conserved* 

The moisture favours the decomposition of the plant remains 

from the trees - leaves, branches and so one 	Dampness is 

necessary for the activity of fungi, so the retention of 

complete cover for the soil conserved moisture and favours 

the complete decomposition of the remains* 

In connection with the condition of our forests 

before the arrival of white men, I have given attention to 

that factor over a considerable period* Very large trees 

existed in our forests, reaching a maximum in the case of 

King Edward VII which is on the track from Marysville to 

Cumberland. I have tried to arrive at the age of those 

huge trees, and find it is very difficult. On the other 

side of the world, tree age can be calculated very readily 

by rings of growth, but that is impossible in our case. 

The rate of growth was very low in the old age, and I would 

not be surprised, or rather I estimate the age of King 

Edward VII to be in the neighbourhood of 3 ) 000 years. 

Possibly it is the world's oldest tree* 	There are a large 
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number of those old large trees, which indicates that 

the forests were not burnt. Hill Tree ferns which 

accompany the mountain ash I would regard as being in 

the neighborhood of 500 years oldo 

(Continued on Page 1890)0 
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WITNESS (Continued): The size of the old musk trees, blanket woods and 

beeches suggests that they have been immune from fire in 

the past. 	In the short space of time that the white 

man has spent in Victoria, all these magnificent specimens 

have gone° 	The apparently even aged forest is very 

uneven aged. 	With regard to the types of fires, and the 

devastating fires we had recently, it is interesting to 

record the demsge done, and the effects on the forests 

After the 1926 fires, we made a succession of studies in 

the Blacks Spur region, particularly with regard to the 

growth of bracken, and I noted that bracken came through 

after thirteen days following the Acheron fires No rain 

had fallen. 	Bracken fern was first through, and we 

recorded up to seven stems per square foot of bracken fern. 

Bracken is practically the only thing that is completely 

undamaged ultimately by fire. Fire favours bracken in 

two ways in particulars Bracken is light demanding, and 

it is very intolerant of shade, and, therefore, when a fire 

opens up the crown, it permits a greater volume of light, 

which favours brackens 	Furthermore, while the other plants 

are destroyed, bracken comes through without competition. 

Bracken differs from other plants, in that the portion above 

ground in bracken is only leaf materials 	Actually the 

stems of bracken are from three to four inches below the 

soil, and, therefore, fire only destroys the leaves, but does 

not destroy the stem or the reproductive parts. Hence the 

bracken is free to come above the ground in the normal course, 

whilst its competitors have had their stems destroyed,' 

Bracken differs from other plants, in that its stems as well 

as it roots are below ground, thus favouring regeneration. 

These underground stems consist of a large amount of food 

material and moisture, and can send up shoots before rains 

falls. 	Bracken, I regard as most serious menace to 

the water supply of this States 	 It 

forms such a perfect mat below the ground, that it retards 
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the penetration of water. 	The decomposing parts of 

bracken act more or less as a sponge, and, therefore, they 

are neither letting it in nor letting it out. One sees 

large areas of bracken now that were once covered with 

forest. 	Frequent fires going through the forest will 

ultimately destroy general growth. 	Creeping fires will 

destroy seedlings of other plants, but will not destroy 

bracken. 	The recent fires penetrated only a small distance 

into the ground, and did not affect the bracken. Bracken 

is abundantly through at the present time in certain areas 

in the Acheron valley. 	Passing from the mountain ash 

areas, we come to other forests )  and here I might say that 

many of our Australian plants seed poorly, and that is a 

serious factor in case of fire. 	The continued firing 

completely wipes out a large number of native plants, which 

have no other means of reproduction other than through seed. 

Few of them have the same capacity as bracken to revive. 

They have no underground parts of re-growth. 	Where plants 

are dependent only on seed, and seed is produced sparsely, 

the danger to native vegetation is serious in case of fire. 

In the eucalypt, we have another curiosity in seed habits. 

the eucalypts do not shed their seeds when ripe. You cango 

out almost any time and collect seed from gum trees. host 

plants shed their seeds when mature, but eucalypts hold 

their seeds, and this has an effect in the regeneration 

through seedlings. 	The trees seed late, and if a fire 

destroys young trees before they can seed themselves )  the 

area must necessarily be completely devoid of trees from 

then onwards, and )  if fires continue, we finally get only 

bracken. 	The difficulty of re-establishing a forest in 

bracken areas is serious. 	Bracken ix so completely takes 

charge of the ground that it is difficult for other plants to 

establish themselves, and the heat of bracken burning will 

completely destroy young trees. 	Density differs in 

different classes of forests, and mountain ash stands alone 
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as our most complex forest, but it is c omparatively restricted 

in its range. Mountain ash has as under-storey of shrubs and 

small trees, with a varying density of ground cover, but the 

crown suppresses undergrowth to a large extent. Rising in 

elevation, we have tha woolly butt, and red mountain ashmTith 

a clean floor. 	So far as I have been able 1.1) observe, it has 

a grass floor. The trees are lofty. 	There is great density 

per acre. In the Glen Wills area I have counted up to seventy-

nine per acre, the densest area I have seen, reminding one of the 

managed forests in Europe. 	As it has a grass floor, it is 

naturally suitable for grazing purposes. 	At approximately 

4,500 feet, where the forest finishes, we come to snow gums. 

It is not necessarily a continuous belt. There are grass areas 

between, but everywhere snow gums grow throughout the State, 

there is grass.. 	This is a widely distributed class of country, 

but does not occur in dense masses. 	Snow gum country must 

definitely be regarded as grazing land. 	The wealth is there, 

and the grass should be used. I think that it must be offered 

to the graziers with, however, adequate protection from fires 

Next we have the messmate and peppermints, which I regard as the 

most inflammable of our forests. 	The messmate has many 

subdivisions, and probably everyone would not agree with me 

in my wide classification of these forests, but it occupies an 

area not only lower in rainfall than mountain ash country, but 

in mountain ash areas it occurs where the soil is poor and the 

slopes are exposed. 	 It is much more sensitive to fire 

than mountain sails 	In the case of successive creeping 

fires, the danger to the messmate forests if great. 	Whilst 

messmate or peppermint might not necessarily be damaged by fires 

such as we have had recently, on the other hand, slow fires with 

a great amount of debris, particularly bracken, would cause 

considerable damage, and eat into the trees. 	Where the bark is 
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inflammable, the damage is serious, for everyone who has 

examined. messmate trees can see where the fire gets right 

in. Once a fire gets into the bark, the fate of the tree 

is sealed. Throughout the State, there is a great amount 

of scrub associated with messmate-peppermint, varying from 

high rainfall to low rainfall areas. 	Lies smat e ultimately 

comes out into grass floors in the lower rainfall areas. 

There are ferns and other trees coming in as well. 

ilessmate-peppermint land is, on the whole, unsuitable for 

land_ settlement. 	First of all, there is a danger where 

this land is settled_ in the vicinity of forests, and it 

cannot be claimed that, on the whole, this type of land has 

been successfully settled throughout the State. 	Where the 

trees have been removed in the process of settlement, scrub 

has come up abundantly, and the danger to the adjoining forests 

is great. 	I do not think I have ever seen a messmate forest 

on good land, and the only cheap means of clearing it is by 

fire. 	In the eastern portions of the State, from Bairns- 

dale, messmate-peppermint is replaced by silvertop and white 

stringy bark. 	That is a confused area from a forestry point 

of view, but we might reasonably regard it as that. That area 

has a scrub floor, lower usually than messmate-peppermint, and 

I regard that area as the finest wildflower area I have seen 

in any corner of the world, and fire will completely destroy 

that magnificent ground vegetation* 	If any other country 

possessed such a fine area of wildiowers, they would run tourists 

to that area in the spring, and advertise it. 

MR. BARBER: What area is that?---Approximately from Bairnsdale east-

ward. 	It is silvertop, white stringy bark country. Next 

in order, coming down the rainfall area, is the red. box and 

red stringy bark, but I do not regard_ that as a serious area 

from a fire point of view, nor would I regard any of the 

others as such. 	The trees are generally small, and, although 

inflammable, they do not appear to have been extensively burnt. 
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In regard to fire protection, a subject which has not 

been closely studied by me, I offer the following 

suggestions, based on my own observations in the bush 

and on my observations in other countries, particularly 

in the German forests, 	I would prefer a system of 

watch towers to aeroplanes. Watch towers on the top-

most hills give a much closer contact with the fires 

than aeroplanes, and by linking watch towers, by tele-

phones, to one another and to a district headquarters, 

situated within the areas concerned, one would get a 

better control of the area than would otherwise be the 

ease. 	The subdivision of forests into natural units 

by roads is necessary* 	Our forests are traversed by 

few roads, and there is little means of getting in to 

fires quickly, with equipment* 	Where the areas are 

intersected with roads )  there is not only a means of 

getting at a fire r  but also a means of locRliRing it. 

It can be fought on the side desired to the best ad- 

vantage,‘ 	Again the straightening of all boundaries, 

or the extension to natural boundaries is necessary* 

If one views the boundaries of State forests, one is 

struck by the fact that they do not run along natural 

lines, but rather along artificial lines, In indenta-

tions, along boundaries are to be found settlements, and 

often exceedingly poor settlements* I would say that 

straightening boundaries, and bringing boundaries into 

natural alignment, as well as eliminating settlers from 

badly infected or scrub infested land and land which still 

bears good forest. 	So long as settlers are permitted to 

go on to landvhich iss:omething worse than marginal land, 

that will only mean that they w ill have to clear the land 

by fire, and, whilst one must sympathise with the settlers 

permitted to go there, I consider it is not worth the 

amount which it would normally cost to clear* 

THE COMMISSIONER: Who permits that?---The settlement of land? 

Yes?---It is the general policy of the State, I presume* The Lands 
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Department still holds large areas, much more than the 

Forests Commission* 	I have not worked out the area. 

MRG GOIANS: The figures have been supplied?---4here there is alienated 

land, and it is not going to be incorporated into forests * 

 this land should be kept clear of all scrub at least one 

quarter of a mile from the forest boundaries. Restrictions 

of this kind are imposed in the United States, where goose-

berries were a source of disease liable to infect valuable 

forests. 	If this land in Victoria is not properly dealt 

with, it must remain a danger, and it is necessary,in 

the interests of public safety, to have that land cleared. 

I consider it is necessary that the forests should be sub-

divided into smaller units. 	I would favour the complete 

clearing up of every area milled. 	In other parts of the 

world, there is not a twig left on the ground after the 

milling operations have been finished* 	The area must be 

completely cleared to allow for the regeneration of the 

forests. 	This, no doubt, raises a problem, but the 

problem is met in other parts of the world. 	I do not favour 

milling in the forests. 	I do not recollect anywhere seeing 

milling in forest areas* 	The mill is essentially a potential 

source of danger in forest areas. 	There is the offal 

from the mill, and that has to be burnt )  or not burnt, and 

presents a continuous source of danger. 	The mill should 

be external to the forest is in clearing, and removed from 

fire danger. 	In a fixed mill removed from the forest, a 

decent class of home can be provided for the workers, and 

permanent settlement can be effected* 	The practice of 

allowing the saw miller to fell in the forest is oppsed to 

the general practice of harvesting by the primary producer. 

In the normal course, the primary producer is the one who 

harvests the crop, whether it be wool, wheat, or any other 

primary product. 	If you allowed the manufacturer to 

harvest the wool from the sheep, he would cut the wool only 

from the sheep's bask s  and leave the other portion on the 
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sheep as being uneconomic to handle. 	Similarly, in the 

wheat industry, only portions would be harvested. When a 

Primary producer has to harvest a crop, he harvests it clean, 

and I regard the forester as the only one who should harvest 

timber. The logs should be hauled out 	The practice 

is different in various parts of the world. 	In some cases, 

the purchaser of the logs is allowed in the forest at certain 

times, or the forester will haul the logs to the margin of 

the forest. 	The man who is responsible for harvesting the 

succeeding crop is the man who should be responsible for the 

harvesting and the clearing up of the area at each time of 

harvesting. 

THE COMMISSIONER: At the present time, I understand the miller cannot 

choose his logs. 	The trees are designated by an officer of 

the Forests Commission, in some parts, at least?---That may 

be so, in some parts, but there is still litter left in the 

forests. 

But the Forests Commission is supposed to supervise that and see that 

it is not left. 	It may be a question not of men so much 

as of management?--- .Yes. 	Getting on to the question of 

management, I would favour the clearing and felling of our 

forests in such a way as to ensure the best means of regener-

ation as one of the safest measures of protection against 

fires. 	On the other side of the world, forests must be 

cleared of debris in such operations. 	In some places, 

there is a system of leaving certain trees to shed seeds. 

The position. is somewhat different in the =RA case of the 

eucalypt. 	They can retain their seeds - for how man w years 

I do not know. WS have tried to arrive at that factor. 

MR. KELSO: I am not going to atkamip attempt to summarise your evidence, 

because I feel that it is all very valuable. There are one 

or two points I should like to bring out in a final sort of 

wayo 	You have stated, in effect, that if you can thicken 

the crown or canopy of the forest, that will assist in 

suppressing scrub growth?----Yes; you cannot increase the 
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canopy of existing forests, however* 

I do not suggest that you can, but you can foster it, or save it?---

You can save it, yes* 

And one way of saving it is to exclude fire from it?---That is the 

only way* 

That is to say, safeguarding the trees themselves is the sound method, 

from your point of view, of suppressing the growth of scrub?---

What I had in mind was that, in harvesting the timber, the 

re-growth would be attended to, having regard to the density 

of cover* 

I have got away from the commercial aspect* 	It has been put before 

the Commission that if we kept the fire out of the forest, 

we would generate so much scrub as to make it dangerous 

from a fire risk point of view* 	Is it not a fact that if 

we kept the fire out, it would foster a true canopy that 

would act in depressing the scrub?---Scrub will only grow 

in such places where it can obtain light, carbon dioxide 

from the air, and moisture from the soil. 

THE COMMISSIONERt What about the eucalypts * 	You told us that the 

leaf hangs vertically and does not afford so much cover* 

Do you agree that you could build up a sufficient canopy 

there?--Yes. Let us go back to the German forest for a 

moment for a parallel* 	In the Garman forest, where the 

light is coming through unduly, the Germans grow a second 

storey forest. 	In Victoria, blackwood and golden wattle 

can grow in partly utilised light, and eucalypts cannot° 

MR. KELSO: Although we cannot establish such an exclusion of light in 

all forest areas, we do, in fact, know that our eucalypts 

exclude a good deal of light where there is a good canopy, 

and thereby that effects some control on the undergrowth?---  

Yes* Certain plants can only grow in the shade if they 

are shade enduring, but most of ours are not; they are 

lighOomanding° 

One method of assisting in the growth of shrubs, and particularly 
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of bracken, is by the use of fire?---The more you open up 

the crown, the more light will get through, and the more 

light you have, the greater the amount of ground material 

and growth generally* 

THE COMISSIONER: You speak of suppressing scrub so that you can get 

rid of it by improving the canopy., 	Take the present state 

of our forests, would you not have to wait for many years 

to achieve that end° 	You told us that eucalypts were 

KJ: slow growing?---No, the eucalypt is not a slow grower. 

Well then, did you not say that the old ones were slow growing?---Yes, 

the old ones are practically only producing material to 

offset decay. 	A. large number decay inside. 	balance 

is being struck by Nature° 	I consider that the mountain 

ash is the fastest growing tree in the world. 

Suppose the State engaged in a programme to put into effect What you 

and Nr. Kelso, are advocating, how long would we have to 

wait before the. desired result was obtained, that is, a 

reasonably clean forest floor?---You would have to wait some 

time for a completely suppressed state, although that could 

be effected in certain areas in well under ten years. 	The 

rate of eucalypt growth is enormous* 

M. KELSO: If an area has reverted to bracken )  and there is a total absence 

of canopy and no seed trees present, that would take very much 

longer?---I would not offer any opinion in so far as bracken 

infested land is concerned and how long it would take to re- 

generate trees* 

THE COMMISSIONER: When you come to what I might call hungry country, 

where trees are few and far between, and where, in the natural 

state, there is only sparse growth, the desired canopy could 

never be formed, could it?----That would happen in messmate- 

peppermint country )  where the trees are growing on exposed slopes, 

but then that area would probably carry a fair amount of coarse 

grass also* 

(Continued on page 1900). 
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THE WITNESS (Continued): Those areas are more or less marginal to 

grazing and forestry, so I do not see that you can cover 

those outside cases. 	The simplest thing would be to 

see that theywere clear, or youwould have to take some 

steps if there is no other means of protecting them by 

using fire. I would not regard that as serious* 

THE COMMISSIONER: Regarding your prediction that the achievement of 

the suppression of the scrub might take place in 10 years, 

would that apply to the greater part of our forests?---

Provided the density of stocking was there; that is to 

say, that you have trees whose crowns are meeting* 

In many parts at present those conditions do not obtain?---In a 

state of nature a forest is not completely stocked, and 

man can improve it, or he can also very materially injure 

it* 

What would you say, speaking generally, is the present state of our 

forests in that respect? 	Have they a satisfactory canopy 

or are they too sparse?---The majority of areas outside 

those intensively out are carrying trees whose canopies 

are fairly wide apart. They have been damaged by fire 

from time to time and the fire has encouraged the growth 

of scrub* 

Can I obtain a general statement from you on that? 	Speaking in 

general terms, to achieve the objective you suggest, namely, 

the suppression of scrub by growing a canopy, would not 

the Department have to engage in extensive artificial 

planting?---In important forests, yes. 

In those cases, the canopy would not exist in 10 years?---Yes. 

Mountain ash is a very rapid grower. 	Ina forest 10 

years oldp the trees would possibly be from 20 to 30 feet 

high. I am speaking now only from memory* After 10 years, 

they would be casting quite a dense shade for a eucalypt 

and would be useful in suppressing the majority of the 

undergrowth* 

To suppress undergrowth in a short period of 10 years, would not that 

necessitate the employment of a great army of men on 
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intensively re-afforesting?---I do not see how you are 

going to overcome. the present litter in the forests unless 

the thing is very actively engaged in immediately. 

That is rather another consideration. To get the canopy you would 

like to see, I suggest would necessitate the employment of 

an army of men planting and re-afforesting?---There may be 

sufficient seed fallen from the trees to re-afforest the 

area, but there is the difficulty that you have so many 

standing dead trees and logs on the ground already as to 

materially interfere with the process of regeneration. The 

forest floor will have to be cleaned in order to grow a 

young forest. It is a serious point* 

It would be a gigantic task to get the young trees in train at all, 

would it not?---Yes, it would in the valuable and important 

forests which we are particularly concerned with, such as 

those used for water conservation* In those places the 

problem will have to be faced. 	If the metropolitan catch* 

merit areas went over to bracken, I seriously think that part 

of Melbourne would have to be evacuated* 

R. KELSO: Apart from the question of artificial regeneration which 

may be applied to clean cut areas that have been milled overt 

or other special areas, is it not a fact that keeping fire 

out of the forest has a tendency to maintain a satisfactory 

canopy and even to increase it?---erovided you can keep fire 

out $  the present canopy is acting in a restrictive way on 

the scrub already there, and you also have the growth of 

young trees* 

If it is a choice between fires and no fire, do you agree that fire 

destroys the canopy and promotes the growth of scrub, aad 

that keeping out fire promotes the canopy and t ends to 

control the growth of the scrub?---I would not consider 

fire on the water catchments on any consideration* 

I was talking about forests in general?---Keeping out fire will favour 

the development of the crown and also the growth of the 

young trees* 

And has a tendency to depress the scrub* In your opinion, would not 
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the keeping out of fires tend to reduce the amount of 

scrub? 

THE COMMISSIONER: I think the witness has already made that clear* 

If you wish to exclude fire from the forest, I take it 

you must exclude all people?---No, I would not say thate 

The Germans, for instance, open up the forests for people 

to go through them* 	The mare people go through the 

forests the more they will appreciate the forests and 

support forest activities* 

I am afraid we have to deal with Victoria* The Germans may be better 

educated on that subject0 Even if you keep fire out of the 

forest for so many years, I should think you might never 

achieve your object of the trees forming a canopy that would 

naturally suppress the undergrowth? - --I should say that, 

aided by the hand of man, and with real scientific control ) 

 you could obtain the canopy that is desired* 	Other nations 

have achieved it, and I do not see whywe cannot* 

It seems to me that it would take a long period, 	We must be patient 

and active, if I may use that paradox - physically patient 

and mentally active* 	Whilst that is taking place, the 

cycle of seasons will continue and there will perhaps be 

another repetition of January the 13th a few years hence* 

You may take precautions and yet again have fire?---I would 

take every precaution to fight fire if it arises. 

As part of those precautions, would you use fire?---I do not like 

fire under any consideration* 	Fires does damage. I would 

work on the basis that I could prevent fire from getting ine 

To use fire successively is undoubtedly to create damage, 

and it may be that you will have a sufficiently long spell 

to enable you to get the forests in good order. 	There was  

13 years between 1926 and 19390 	That is a good long period 

to enable active measures to be taken. 

I suppose people wil3y6e saying something like that in 50 years' time?---

Yes, that is one of the evils of democracy* 

MR. KELSO: Does that explain the reference to Germany?---Germany 

does not happen to represent my brand of politics, but I 



admire the Germans for their efficiency* 	I have the utmost 

regard for them in that respect. 

JIR0 BARBER- Does it amount to this: thatmhile you are waiting 10 

or 15 years to grow a canopy to kill the undergrowth, you 

are in the meantime subject to a severe fire hazard?--- 

admittedly* 

And your position is that that difficulty must be guarded against by 

other measures than burning?---Wattles are through already in 

the burnt-over area. There will be a good growth of trees in 

certain of those areas, and it may be in all* Where there is 

a good growth of trees, the desired end can be aided by man by 

seeing that more seed is distributed. 

You would agree, I suppose, that in order to protect the forest while 

it is growing to the desired state, it may be as well to write-

off portion of the forest and burn it as a protection?---If you 

burn there is bound to be regeneration of some sort unless the 

trees were not producing seed. Provided they have produced 

seed, you will get some regenerationl  good and bad, on the areas. 

To fire the young trees before they seed will destroy them and 

will permanently wipe out those areas as forests* 

It is desirable, is it not, to burn in strategic areas in order to 

provide breaks and safeguard the main part of the forest, or 

would you go so far as to completely exclude fire from the 

forest? 

THE COMTAISSIONER: There appear to be two points of view* The 

Doctor is saying that if you burn you destroy, and he would not 

destroy. 	The point is, should responsible authorities be 

allowed to destroy a little in order to save a lot?---If one 

assents to that doctrine, what is "a little"? "A littleu 

might be a mighty lot at the end. 	I would not trust anyone 

with fire* 	I will not have it under any consideration* 

MR. BARBER: I take it that you would entirely exclude fire from the 

forests?---I would. 
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You s aid you favoured the breaking up of the forest into smaller unit 

areas° A witness the other day suggested the same thing, 

but his idea was to break the forest up by means of settle-

ment* Have you any views on that?---Those settlers would 

be put on what is definitely forest country, and they would 

use the only cheap means of clearing the land, and, that 

means is fire* 

Regarding your plea for properly controlled milling, you do not 

suggest that milling should be discontinued?---My objection 

is to milling right in the forest itself* 

As a starting point, you desire properly controlled milling?---Yes. 

Do you not think that milling, if properly controlled, might do a 

forest good rather than harm?---I do not see what you are 

coming at* 	Inning is the miller's end of the business* 

If he is outside the forest and he conducts the business 

badly, he will pay for it out of his own pocket* 

But is it not possible that properly controlled milling could actually 

do a forest good rather than harm?---Milling is the cutting 

up of logs* I cannot see what that has to do with the 

reconditioning of the forest* 

In the case of mountain ash, would you have to cut out the whole of the 

mountain ash area?-- -Yes* 

You would not suggest that mountain ash would ever regenerate under 

older trees left there?---Provided the trees are fax enough 

apart, yes* 

Five miles apart?---I have never worked it out. 	Mountain ash is very 

sensitive to shade, and the proximity to the parent tree does 

not favour reproduction. 

You would not get a young tree growing in the shade of an older tree? - - 

That is generally a true statement. 

If there was a proper selective milling, would it in t ime improve rather 

than harm the forest?---Yes, if the selection is done properly, 

but I would like to see it done properly* 

1a°  GOIANS: The Commission is to a certain extent interested in the 

qualifications of forest officers° 	Am I right in under- 

standing that there is no forestry course at the University 
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of Melbourne?---None at all, but we do have approximately 

one student a year from the Forests Commission coming to 

the University, but they do a science course, not a forestry 

course. 

Am I right in saying that they do a couple of years of science includ-

ing botany?---Not necessarily. 

Then they go for a couple of years to Canberra to learn something 

about forestry?---That arrangement was made, but it has 

broken down. Victoria has not sent a student to Canberra 

I should say for at least five years. 

THE COILEESSIONER: ':Mere are they trained now?---The State has a school 

at Creswick, and for the work done there the University gives 

a year's status. 

That is in regard to the science degree?--The first year's standing 

in s cienceo 

MR. GOWANS: Apparently they have to do a good deal more before they 

get the forestry diploma?---We give the bachelor of science 

in forestry at Melbourne for two years' work done at Canberra, 

subsequent to two years' science at Melbourne. 

Can you tell us anything about the subjects done at Canberra?--- 

Canberra at the moment is in the melting pot, and I am 

one of the committee dealing with it. 	d'e are ai m.ing in 

August to straighten out the Canberra school. 

THE 00111ISSIONER: You are well informed, but you do not want to talk 

about it?---Neither New South dales nor Victoria has suppprted 

Canberra, and at my instigation we have had a reconstitution 

of the committee consisting of the forest officers of the States 

and the Universities to s ee if we can make the thing work. 

In the last few years, it would apparently be very difficult for a man 

to obtain a real University forestry education in Victoria?---

The only education he could get would be at Creswick which, as 

far as it goes, is a good school. 

MR. GOWANS: Do they work at Creswick before or after going to the 

University?---Generally before going to the University. 
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Some of the subjects done at Creswick are not in the 

University sy.i.i.abus o 
	We w1.1.1 only give them credit for 

work done that is covered by the University sy.i.labue• 

You made a point of the tact that there was a .i.arger forest area under 

the control. of t he Lands Department than of the Forests Cow., 

ia.sion?--I said, I )") -Q :Ce Vit.a4 I am speaking from 

memory, and not actua,A.ly from data, 

Mat did you have in mind when yea referred to forest areas? Did you 

mean areas of valuab.1.3 or commercia.1 timber? 	Had you the 

high Ills ains iri mind?---Areas covered by forests* 	I would 

not reagrd the high p.i.ains as forest land, 	Where there is 

good grazing, it definitely be.l.ongs to the agricuitura.i.  section 

of tl.e community * 	In the case of woo.L.Lybutt with a. grass 

floor and a magnificent forest, you have an area between  the 

two, and I see no reason why the grass should not be utilised *  

According to the oificia.J. Year Book of the Conmonwealth of Australia 

for J. 9 3 7 , there is ta at aterront on page 75i.f. that, "Expert 

foresters, however, consider that al_proximately .1.9,500,000 

acres represent 	possible yiniit for permanent reservation 

in Austra.Lia, 	The distribution of the J.atter area, throughout 

the States was estimated as fo.slows:-..Victoria, 5,500,000 

acres", 	According to that book five and a half million acres 

in Victoria are sultab.Le for permanent reserve as s forest 

area 	According to figures piaced before the Commission, 

and according to the Victorian Year Book for j.936-37, 

near .!..y five mi.J.Iion acres is s.i.ready under the contro., of the 

:Forests Commission., 	If you put those two figures together 

five mi.J.ion acres 2.1.ready under the contro.a of the  Forests 

Commission, another ,mix miiiion or even miiiion under the 

control of simiiar authorities such as tre State fivers  and 

Water Supp.i.y Commission and, ac cording to the Con nonweal,th 

Year Book an area of 5,500,000 acres suitab.i.e for pervanent 

reservation as forest * how does that s..ivare with the idea that 
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there are more forest areas under Crown nand control. than 

under the control. of the Foreate Conmiasion?---If you take a 

map of Victoria, the Sydney aine roughay marks the naturaa 

boundary of the forest area. 	as of that amine is eaproximately 

forest .und o  

Does thz t incaude the high pain,,?---The high paaina are not an extensive 

area. 

Aaa the high aaainea--Take round Mt. We..iington and on Dargo and Bogong 

there are not very extensive areas there.. 	The amount of 

aand above 4,500 fee t in this state is very aimited. I have 

not a map in front of me and I do not want to be taken up  on 

the point s  I said I believed that approximateay s much 

..and was under Crown aanda as under Forest, 	I am thinking 

of areas marked on the map as dedicated to forest. 

I  6. gree that there is more wand classified as Crown .ands than  under 

forests, but if you put it that there are more forest  areas 

under t Ye Crown Lands Department than under the Foreeta 

Comad.asion, according to the figures I have quoted you do  not 

appear to be correct?---It depends on what you ca.. foreet. 

The Forests Commission is concerned definitely with areas 

carrying good timber. 

When you state that measmate is more aiabae to damage by creeping fires 

than mountain ash because the fire gate inside the inner bark, 

do you agree that there is more poesibiiity of mountain ash 

being injured in its inner bark by creeping fire?--i-I am not 

convinced on that point at Rat. 	I was onay hazarding an opinion, 

Measmate is a very infaanmable bark. 	I am speaking of 

matured trees; tire bark of the meeamate is very infaammabae 

and I fear that repeated fires wouad give the opportunity for 

a fire to get into the butt of the tree. 	I do not fee that 

in mountain ash country there is the aame serious difficuaty 

from creeping fire. I am not expressing the resuate of 

any CIR perimenta .L work on the subject. 

(CONTINUED ON PAGE 1909). 
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GOWANS: You are aware that opinion is not shared by very many 

foresters in Australia -: --I am vwe.,..1 aware of that fact, but 

not every opinion out here is correct. 

A book of reference was referred to yeaterday by Mr. Ke.s.so "Horiey l a 

Handbook on Fire Protection", what do yea think of that book•:----

I have no reco.L.Lection of Hor.Ley, 	What is the tit .e of the 

book? 

Forest Protection?---I recollect it, 

Passages were read out of that to the effect reguxar controlled burning 

had been used successfully in India and in the Chir pine 

forests?---Yes 

Could  youiAexpress an opinion as to whether Chir pine is more or ..ess  heat-

resistant, than, say, messmate?--Chir pine has very thick 

bark, exceedingly thick; it would be very difficult to 

Penetrate it 	From specimens I have seen I would say it  was 

almost the thickest barked pine I have seen, 

:A1.1  you be.J.p us by comparing it with some of our Victorian thick  barked 

trees, e.g, messmate?--.That is a different type of bark 

a.together. With a messmate you have a fibrous bark that  is 

very readily ou.i.led off and very easily burnt. 	In the  case 

of the Chir pine you ha, e a laminated  bark that is solid, 

A fire would not readily get in it 

That  is obvious, I suppose, from the fact they practice burning over 

there; but is that the only comparison you can make between 

the two?---You have different types of trees altogether, 

am not acquainted with the Chir pine extensively, 	I have 

not been in the forests; I have only seen isolated trees  and 

I would not be prepared to express an opinion at alp., except 

tha t origina.uy when they tackled the problem serious.i.y in 

India firing of the forest was a. serious probJ.em. 	It had 

to be checked *  

Would  you express any opinion on the question as to whether American 

conifers are more or less heat resistant than our thick 
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barked trees messmate, stringy bark, silvertop, etd.?---No, 

I wousd not express any opinion on that, 

Si.vertop, iron bark?---You could not burn iron bark, I have never 

seen a forest of iron bark burnt at ass, 

Where are the main iron bark forests?--There is an extensive one at 

Chistern, one at Rushworth, Bendigo, St.Arnaud, Dunnosiy, 

and Maryborough, 	I think that covers it. 

Sima,,TEBI Are you aware of the scope and conditions of training of 

the trainees at Creswick Forest ;shoos.?---I would not say 

intensively, 	personally haw no contact, although I am  set 

down ss an examiner for Creawick. 	I have never examined. 

I assume you know entrance is only secured by examination in the first 

instanee?---yes. The standard of students we have had from 

Creswick is of a very high order. 

Do  you  know that in asmost every instance the standard of entrance to 

Creswick is as high as eavi rig? I thought it was seaving. 

The sesection is by examination and in asmost the case of every pupil. 

that pupil. has attained Leaving standard?---I understood they 

asi had attained seaving, As I say the standard of the 

stud ents we get from there is high. 

Have  you made any contact with any of the Forestry offidera throughout 

the State in the forested areas?--Yes, from time to time; 

but mostly those that have been our graduates. 

What  has been your experience in reiation to those men, so far as  their 

capacity to do their job?--- ,I would say ttE y are exceeciingsy 

capabse, 	Iw Quid be pleased to think every Department in 

Australia had a body as fine and as eager, and as keen and 

competent as they are. 

THE COLIMISIONM: Would it be fair to ask if they are satisfied with 

their conditions, as far as you can make out ?---No, I do not 

think they am, from what I have been able to gather, 
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I gathered that myse,f. 	Can you express more definite,y for me what 

their dissatisfaction arises out of?---It probab,y arises from the 

fa ct that the three Cormi s sioners are not trained men, and it 

is just a problem whether a Commission consisting if three un-

trained men can appreciate the ability and direct and organize an 

.) 

	

educated body of men beneath them, 	In the other Commissions 

in the State, the Water Connnission, the Strt to Rivers, the 

Electricity Commission and so forth there are trained men who 

know themse,ves what is the point thay are aiming ,t
, how to 

achieve it, and who can direct the men beiow them, 	In this 

other case, that may be so. 

Of course, 'speaking now impersona,ly and not directly about the Forests 

Commission have you found t hat the untrained man at the head is 

jea,oua and distrustful  of a man he knows to be his superior 

in education who is beiow him?---No, that I cannot speak of at all 

I have no personal opinion on that at sal, not the si.ightest. 

1 tho ght you Might have gathered something of t hat dart as so many 

graduates have gone through your hands?----Our point of view is 

that the people who pass through our hands are not engaged in 

work in comparison with their ability, We have another class 

of students passing through our hands, agricultura, students, 

who have steadily devveioped the Agricuitura, Department. Those 

men and women come back to us, and we bee how the work of the 

Agricu,tura, Department is speadiiy spreading itse,f and starting 

in new avenues. 

MR. BARBER: Arising out of those remarks in re cation to the Forests 

Commission I suppose that in the first place yap r remarks 

between the Forestry officers and the Co/mission were mere 

persona, opinions•---I am not expressing any opinions regarding 

the relation of forestry officers *  
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I thought you were „ 	I suppose you w1.1.1 agree that there is .something 

more in ruzaning an organization like the Fores Corimission 

than merely ha ving a good forester, I am speaking now of 

the Chairman and the other members of the Forests Commission----

Yes, there is not only knowledge, 	Combined with know.i.edge 

there must be ability to organise and direct. 

You know there are three Commissioners, the Chief Coranissioner whose 

main job is tle administration side - if you have a Chief 

Commissioner who is,trained man in administration, another 

Commissioner who is a trained technician, particularly in the 

way of forestry education, and a third Commissioner who is in 

essence a practica.. man who has spent his entire Life in the 

forest, would you not regard t hat as being s. fairly competent 

body to administer a department of this nature?---Yes, but 

you are making certain assumptions that I do not agree with. 

I certainly am, but I am not asking you to agree with me, Assuming 

what I have said is correct would you regard that as a proper ,  

body to administer the Forests Commission?--- , No, I do not 

regard a practicel run as necessary to be on the Commission 

in the first glace, The Forests Commission is dealing with 

an educated body of young men who are to be the future 

contro.u.ers of the forest service, and I think that a man 

who as to control those men should be likewise trained, 

I thought you were putting it your first principle was bas ed on the 

fact the Commission was not praetica.i. at ss..L. As I under-

stood your first criticism, you were compiaining the men of 

the Forest s Commission were not practica4. men. 

THE COMa33IONER: I do not think that was 60 • I think what Dr. Patton 

sought to put so succinctly and not offensively was t hat 
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they were not educated men in the sense of being educated 

in forestry, and they couid not contro.I. men who were, 

ought not to be .Left in controJ., 	That was what he said, aid I 

am merely recounting what I reca.J. of the evidence put. 

THE 1111TNESS: That is the actua A. essence of the statement and the t 

was in re -ply to His Honour's question, 

MR. BARBER: That of course wi.Li have to be met by evidence, We w1.1.1 

not get ..,nywhere by mere cross-examination. 	I was putting 

to you would you bay a man had not been educated in forestry 

work ADO had been in it for 30 years?---yes, but you are 

using the word "education" in two different senses, 

You are using the word ':education" I take it in the sense of a gentLeman 

who sits in a cr.ass-room for a certain number of years and 

eventua.Lly qualifies for a degree j---Iam putting it that sammulti 

education is ,something more than that, 	In ell the science 

schools and professional schoo.i.s not only interna.e training, 

but externa. training is necessary also, 	There are two 

sides to it, the practica.i. and theoretica_ 

Of course there are, However, I do not think we vviJ.1 get very far, 

THE COINISOIONER: This aL. J. arose out of something no ,bigger than 

a man's hand. 

M B.P.RBER: I appreciate that, 

THE COMMISSIONER: It is a .Little off the track, 

MR. BARBER: With respect, I think it is very far off the track, if I 
may say so, 	It may have the effect of Ix .4 fire getting out 

of °intro.'. and doin,3 lariszQ to tiore4 geintleman whom Ian 

representing 

THE 00111:L36ION113. 	:E quite agree ; you must take any steps you think fit; 

but it did grow from such a stns 1. beginning '  

13:11-1311:2.: However, I think the proper answer is evidence which wi.f.1 

be given, (To witness): Do you 6ugget the additionof a 

botanist or two would be a good idea?---I did not ,,uggebt that 
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I tom askl_ng you; I did not say you suggested that?---No, I see no 

necessity for it because forest botany is a course of their 

study, 

I am putting it to you tm t you do not think a trained botanist would 

be a very good man to run the Forests Oommission?---lio I 

never suggested it. 

You yourse.Lf are . trained botanist, and have in addition to being 

caled here as an expert on botany, rather gone out of your 

Way to appoint yoursef 	an expert in psychology, 

THE COLLI3siaLLsR: I do not think that was so. 

ER, KE1,60: I object to that; 	it has nothing to do with bush fires. 

THE 0014141I6uI0libR: I think I um the honest cause of asi this, 

MR, BAR&R: Are you darning me for the answer I gave to His Honourls 

question? 

THE OOMMIS,..3ION.E: We wis.1 caJi. this question closed very short.,y, 	I 

was fo.L.lowing up an impression I gained in the course of my 

traved.s in the country. It was ,uslost irrelevant, but the 

turn it has taken is rel,evant wto respect to your interests, 

Barber, 

MR, BARBEi.; Your Honour wiJ.1 appreciate I have u duty to do, 

ThE COLiMiusIO-VIR: You must do what you can for a client, but I do not 

think we can pursue it any J.onger, 

MR. BARBIR: As I think it has takne a turn which is comw.LeteJ.y irre.Levant 

Your Honour might ask for the who.Le of it to be =Tatted from 

the shorthand notes, 	It seems to be quite irreJ.evant to 

the inquiry* 

THE CIOHCf ' ION1R; It is relevant in a sense. 	I am not going to 

conduct any investigation into the Forests Commission's 

interned. economy. 

YR. BARBIL: That is what this gets to, 



coidiaS,DIONIR: If it were pubiished it may be harmfua, and do damage, 

MR, BARBlia: It cannot do damage in this room. 

TEE COMI,ITIONER: If it did appear - again I use ai.J. those safeguards 

and protect my innocence and faith - you had three incompetent 

genta.emen in charge of the forests who had nullified every 

suggestion of fire protection you would say one of the causes 

was the Forests Commission and it nay be ;:e levant in that way, 

MR. BARBER: I appreciate that„ 

THE COLIMI3SIONiii.: If you wish to combat that suggestion you would ca.L1 

your evidence showing that is .ot so; but I do not think you 

had bettter pursue it any further, 	You cannot Jazz b.i.a.nle 

Dr. Patton as he was askeJ the questions and he gave his views, 

Perhaps his remarks were a 	more outspoken than those 

to whith we have been accustomed. 	I think the affair could be 

closed with honour to - both parties, 

Da. HARDY: In the matter of the sensitiveness of t he mountain ash do you 

know of any eases of there being sufficient heat in a fire to 

damage a tree without ieaving any external. mark, 	The great 

heat might so affect the .kiving .Layer of the tree under tl bark 

without burning it that the tree w °Laid be regarded as being 

unscathed after the fire whi.Le really some internal damage would 

be manifest later on?---You s.re , -.-Aaggesting the heat would not 

char but be of suff icient intensity to raise the temperature 

of the inner bark approximately 55 degrees above centigrade, 

Fifty-five, degrees is somewhere about the death-point of t he 

protoplasm, and if the heat was intense enough without burning 

to raise) that it would kill the very sensitive cambium and the 

these would be id..6.led and possibly there would be nothing on 

the exterior. 	It seems hypothetica but it appeari.0 to be 1..)sib.Le 
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As I say, the protoplasm is ki_Lied at about 55 degreds centigrade, 

and that is 	below the 100 degrees boiiing point, 

To an ordinary observer going through a forest of mountain ash through 

which a creeping fire had gone it is quite possib.Le a number of 

young trees may have been seriously injured without showing any 

externa.i. signs, 	There is 6. possibility; I am not saying a 

probability?---I do not say it is very probab.Le, 

There may be damage which would be discovered _Later on, perhaps when 

Trli..t.J. ing the timber?---I cannot see how yo would see it when 

yrd..Liing the timber., 	The tree would be dead if the cambium 

was killed, 

Along the saire _Lines there might be sna.Ll damage to some trees which 

would be completeiy covered by the closing in of the bark _Later 

on and nothing would be seen, 	I am speaking of the 6ap.LingsY-, --. 

Yes, but if you killed the saplings in that way that would readily 

show itself up and there would be a big scar on the tree, 

But might not the soar disappear complete.Ly?---yes, but if t he remaining 

bark closed over the wouad there would be a scar in the log, 

internally. 

Yes, that is what I mean; you would discover it later on in the post 

mortem, the damage that occurred inside the tree?---Yes, but 

that tree might .Live fur centuries. 

It is possib.Ley---ye 

Anyone might go through a burnt forest and see awl those trees growing 

and might not think there was much damage to the forest at 

and yet the fire might rea.L.ly have damaged a good dea..?---The 

would could be healed over. 	That is onr thing you have to watch 

for certaiti technica.L things in the timber, 

It might not be discovered for `g- 0,30, or 40 years?---If the bark 
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compsetely healed over the wound it would not be discovered 

until the tree was being misled *  

I know the case of a kauri tree in which simbs 8 inches in diameter were 

cut off csose to the trunk and ass those wounds have heasede-.--,- 

The whole basis of pruning is based on the ability of t he 

tree to heal its own wouads. 

In the matter of saving tke trees, might not a fairsy sight fire cause 

the premature opening of the capsules which contain the seeds, 

and the iegeneration and repopusation of that part would not 

be from the mother trees which ere standing but which would 

have to be artificasly sown or blown in by the wind from trees 

which had ;seeded a t maturity?---Yes, buts light fire so hot, 

that would be sufficiently strong to reach the crown of the 

trees and force the capsules open would have to be a pretty 

heavy sight fire, 

I was thinking of a fire which was perhaps warm enough to cause the 

premature opening of capsuses which are desiberatesy put in 

a drying shed for the coslection of the seedy---Yes, but in 

drying out seedn you do not use heat. 	In the recent hot 

weather, in _4 hours ripe capsules began to open s  We were 

collecting them extensively a 	in a coupse of days tl-By 

Tha 	were open„ 

The same Baum capsules might have remained on the ground for two or 

three years?---They may have remained conger on the tree, 

have never worked out how song they can stay o  

I have known them up to six years, It has frequently been mentioned 

or suggested that the commercias vasue from forests seems to 

sie in the timber. 	It may be overlooked that there are 

other forests which are not kept for timber or for climatic 

purposes but for minor industries such as oil, honeyf and 

so on o 	In country such as Heathcote, and that district, 

where there is grey box and psenty of Manna Gum?----How much 

manna gum is there at Heathcote': 
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Manna gum end yellow box?---Manna gum is not too abundant in thaturea; 

it comes in a J.ittJ.e further south. 	You have grey box, 

yeJ.low box, iron bark. 

From about a tiquare mi.z.e of z hat country there might be taken about  2,400 

worth of produce per annum for honey. If that were so can 

you think of any other industry in that particular kind of 

country that would be eque.I. to that. 	That particular  forest 

would be kept for t hat minor industry and not for timber,  yet 

it might be grazed without doing any injury?---It has  a.s.ways 

been grazed round that area. 

I  have  not a brief for the bee farmers but‘Ahey have been btzrnt  out a numbe:1 

of time and I have a great dea.. of sympathy for them?---I  do 

not know why the two things cannot go together, 	The  who.i.e 

forest is not falatirag feJi..ed az tie same time and the  number 

of trees not flowering is not so very great; there;  would still 

be a lot of trees left for bee culture, 

There was  tk petition to have the graziers excluded from that part  of 

the forest in order that they might continue their livlihood 

with hOney?---,ghat is the trouble in excluding the graziers, 

fire? 

Yes, they he.Ld the honey industry was of more vaxue than the v.i.aue  of  the 

grazing. 	I beiieve it was suggested at one time they  would 

rather pay the vai.ue of grazing licen.ses in order to  keep it 

for their own industry?---I cannot see why the three  things 

cannot work hand in hand. 

Your Honour, in any case I hope to impress the fact there are  forests 

of value for other purposes than for timber only. 

THE  COMMISSIONER: I think we are &Live to that fact, 

THE WIT NESS W ITHDREW. 
00 OW ••••■ owl am M. 

THE  COM IL-:,.J.ONEH: I think I would like to make the matter clear about  the 

trifle Which began this morning. I think it m uld be far  better 

if the gent.temen of the press left out the whole discussion  and au-
a.1.1. matters pertaining to it, 
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it may be re.i.evant, b ut it is distant at the moment, and 

the way this meeting hasbeen conducted you may do a lot of 

harm to peop.Le unnecessarily. I am sure none of us want 

to do that, 

MR. WRIGHT (Hera.Ld Representative): We had caLready arranged to leave 

it out because of tie .Law on the subject, 

MR. BARBER: Might I say I appreciate Your Honours attitude, and iaLso 

the attitude of the press, 	I think the leas said about 

it the better. 

THE COMMISSIONER: It is quite certain in my mind that Dr. Patton is 

not to blame, He answered a question which I do not think 

was intended to elicit that answer, He answered it in an 

honest fashion, Perhaps you had better not argue that, 

If you are prepared to argue Oak amII MIlo 

MR. BARBER: I am not prepared to argue it 

THE COMMISSIONER: We 	proceed with the matter of bush fires, 

M. BARBER: May I say in the very first instance there have been a 

number of remarks passed from time to time during this 

Commission, which I hasten to say were facetious, to the effect 

that the Forests Commission was the defendent or the accusea, 

6o much so that one can almost say uMy client wia.1 give evidence 

on oath and not make a statement from the dock", I again 

emphasise that was L.I.a 	in a spirit of facetiousness, because 

quite seriously, quite clearly, and definitely I want to 

say the Forests Commission is not in any sense the defendant 

in these proceedings, nor for a moment are they prepared to 

accept that position of defendent, 	The responsibility for 

the fires of J.939 insofar as they rest on human beings at aLi, 

rests try some extent on the Forests Commission; they rest 

aJ.so on a very great number of other individuals, persons, 

bodies, both public and private, and in the ultimate anaJ.ysis 

I suppose it rests on every person in Victoria, However, as I 

say, there is some responsibility that is on the Forests 
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Uommission, and the Forests Commission, I suggest, it wi.s 

be shown in evidence has stood up to that responsibility 

both before, after, bad during the fires *  and because in 

contradistinction to some other individuass and bodies they 

did take the fuel share of the responsibility and the 

danger in regard to the fires both before and after. It has 

been just too easy for various interests to try, and to appear 

to put the whole responsibility on the the Forests Commission; 

to try snd make them in the pubic eye a sort of Fire Brigade 

for the entire State. 	After awl, we must not moose sight 

of the fact thxt the Forests Commission is primarily there 

to administer the forest., and as one of its activities, but 

not the first main object, does control all fires in its own 

forests. 	It has ass() assumed responsibility for prevention 

and control of fires in quite a sot of paces outside the  same  ft 

forests; but it is not the Fire Brigade of the State, and  it 

has a sot of other activities other than fire fighting. 

(Page 19r.,0 follows.) 
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Now I make the t preliminary remark in regard to the position taken up 

by the Cormission, because the case I propose to pre sent is 

not merely a defensive one, 	'ahem) criticism has been directed 

to us that "is sufficiently serious to warrant taking up th e 

time of the Tioyai Cosieni ss ion by answering it, it 	be answer- 

ed; but in the main the case we will present will de, I am 

sure, a constructive case and one I hope that will be of 

assistance to Your Honour when you come to wr ite your report 

on the matter you are investigating. 

The case 	be divided into two parts, first of 

all, the past policy and history of t 	Commission and, 

secondly, to wh at we consider desirabie in regard to future 

policy, 	I think tht :.houid be heipfui. to the Royal. Corronission, 

I think I can dismiss that fort he purpose of this opening, 

because tth go into that at ail fuily Wi 11 be mere repStition, 

That portion of the case  will be presented by the Chairman of 

the Forests Commission al d Your Honour will have fusel opportunity 

of considering it then. 	I need not say anything more about 

it at this stage, except to say that will be the Qecond but by 

no I -eans the least important part of the case, 	The first part 

of the case, deaiing with the past -policy of the Forests 

Commission wi il. show that t1 Commission has a riot merely had 

a static poiicy, that it did not just make up its mind in i918, 

or shortly afterwards, wild); its policy was to be, and .then 

stick to it, 	It has teen a deveioping 1.)o! icy, as new 

knowiedgea nd experience has come to the Commission so its 

policy has changed and developed, 	I hope we ahaii be able ii) B7.'N 

Show throughout the years the Commission has been in control it 

gradually built up a very largeand efficient organization for, 

among other things, the control and prevention of fires, 
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Of course, we wield set out the work that has been 

done and the methods that ha ve be en adopted during the course 

of that developing eo.Licy. 

Before indicating the actua.t. evidence to be cai...Led 

there are certain bpecifio matters with which I want to dear 

briefly, 	The first one is u real matter of controversy d  one 

of the main matters before this Xmay lloya. Commission, 	That 

iii this question of forest burning. 	It is apparent to every ,. 

body there a re two extreme schools of thought. 	One school. of 

thought to which I do not think anybOdy would ever .suggest my 

Commission beionged, is represented by the gentieman who wanted 

to burn the forests whoily :end fmquentiy and keep on burning, 

to burn them every two or three yeare, or every one year. 

Then the forests would be s o bc.:autifteLly safe that we would 

not have any fires, 	That Egs argument seems to me to be 

reduced eventuasiy to this absurdity, that if you burn eons 

enough and often enough, in the light of the tochnica.., evidence 

we have, you 7rai,i not have any foreste 	That is one way of 

getting rid of bush fires ,a have no bush and you wiei have no 

fires. 	That technical evidence referred to has shown that 

lb going to eead to 9.4.i sorts of si_ipa iing tragedies and 

difficulties in this State, 	I think, as I indicated, that 

schoo,. of thought has been pretty we.se. discredited. 	Then you 

get the other echoo.L of thought, of which Dr. Patton is 

representative, which vtriA.1 not aJ.io w any fire near any forest 

whatever, not in any circumstances, 	I eubmit the eame position 

lies somewhere between those two extremes and t hat has been 

the eo.Licy of the Forests Commission, 	That is to eay, that 

although we agree with the proposition that burning in the .eong 

run ruins a forest, we consider test a. certain amount of what 

we ca-i strategic burning must be done, ilLur c ase 	show quite 
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tha bee been the po...icy, that in appropriate N J.ace 

and appropriate areas burning has be• - n carried out by the 

Commission, and wt....L. be, both in the forests and for the 

• purpose of protecting .1.ife an property within and on the 

fringes of t be forests * 	That naturally brings me to the 

qeuation of the protection of forest communities, which is 

another matter that has been raised. 	Our case wi 1 show, we 

hope, that wherever a forest community has sought co-operation 

with the Forests Commission in the creation of preventive 

works, that co-operation had been forthcoming from the 

Commission. 	On the other hand, there have been many communities* 

notably I think the Noojee one, where no co-operation at 

c,ou..d be obtained. 	Perhaps this is straying from the precise 

purposes of an opening address, but Your Honour may remember 

Mr. BenseLlack toad me he endeavoured t o get something done in 

the way of protection there; but nothing was done, However, 

the Forests Commission's endeavours outside their own forests 

are estremeiy limited; but I do suggest wherever co-operation 

has be en made poasib...0 by the attitude of the community, that 

co-operation has been given. 

The third matter in the Forests Commission 

res,ationship to Crown Lands. 	A.L.though when one comes to 

study the Act with care and with such .L.ega.L. knowledge as one 

possesses, he inay come to a fairly definite conc.Lusion, I 

do suggest there are at a. east two points of view arguable on 

the points of the Act, particu..arly having regard to those 

latter words in Section 63 (3) making the Minister for 

Lands the authority in regard to all matters other than 

control of forest produce on Crown Lands. 	I suggest 

it is very difficult to say where the authority of th e 

one body begins and the authority of the other body ceases 

However, if t he Forests Commission have taken a view not 

strict;y in accord with the iegal position, in other words 
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if they had been given the complete responsibility and 

duties of safeguarding all Crown lands, what has happened 

is that they have been given the responsibility and appear-

ance of power without any real power at all, because it is 

quite obvious their financial resources have been worked 

out on the basis of dealing with their own particular 

reserved forests and that their financial resources have 

been little enough, one knows, to deal with reserved forests* 

It would be a mere drop in a bucket if they were supposed to 

do complete protective work throughout the whole State* 

however, I desire to make this clear, the case will show 

we have gone into Crow 	d , first of all to put out fires 

when fires were bruning there, and secondly, or previously, 

to put protective works on the Crown lands to protect our own 

reserved forest orparticularly valuable stands of timber in the 

protected forests* Rightly or wrongly, that seems to have 

been the attitude taken by the Commission that that was all 

they were entitled to do, and that is what they have done* Of 

course, the very important view comes in that as Mr* Mcllroy 

said the Lands Gazetted Protected forests, which were simply 

ungazetted, if I may use the term, and it would probably have 

been improper, looking at it from a public administrative point 

of view for the Forests Commission to spend large sum of money 

on areas which could at anytime be removed from their control* 

Having regard to the file that has been put in this morning, that 

is a matter that will need to be investigated further* Ag I draw 

to Your Honor's attention again, that is a matter where the Forests 

Commission is in a very difficult position, the inter-relation 

in regard to those Crown lands* 	I certainly desire to add 

t his, that whatever be the correct view of the Act, in 

practice they could have done no more than they have done, 

19230 	 BARBUR0 



because, as I have already said, it is impossible for 

them to do more than they have done in relation to Grown 

lands, with the resources at their disposal* 

Another matter I desire to t ouch on briefly is 

the question of dugouts* 	Again, there is some doubt 

as to the legal position, as to whether the Forests 

Commission has the power to force dugouts upon millers* 

THE COMMISSIONER.: Did t hey ever seek advice on that? -  

MR.. BARBER: So far as I am able to ascertain, they did not. 

LIR. COWS: Do you say they have not got the power they thought 

they had? 

THE COMMISSIONER: Mr* Barber says they are in doubt. I asked if 

they had sought advice and he says Nod 

MR. BARBER: Looking at it I think myself it is again i an 

arguable matt er. 

MR. GOAN& I should have thought there was very little ground 

for argument. 

BARBER: I know that is Mr. Gowante view. with all respect 

to his legal ability, I venture to say I am not as domatic 

about it as he is. 	In fact )  I do think it is arguable 

and that there is some doubt about it* 	However, again, 

as a practical matter the Forests Commission has done 

pretty well everything it could do in the way of enforcing 

it; at any rate, in regard to reserved forests they have ) 

 with or without power, made it a c ondition and moreover 

they have, again with or without power, taken care to 

see it was carried out. 	Of course, I think the whole 

matter of dugouts has got to be considered, and this view 

may well be put )  that this question of dugouts is not a 

matter for the Forests Commission at all. It seems to be a 

borderline matter, something between the things that are 

clearly the concern of the Forests Commission, such as the 

destruction of mill waste,tops, and so on, which are clearly all fire 
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prevention matters, and other matters where you get 

such things as proper guards to be erected round danger-

ous machines, and the protection of life and limb of the 

workers. Those clearly are matters for the Department 

concerned with that sort of thing. 

THE COWISSIONM: I think what you would be better concerned with 

in this inquiry on that point, if I may suggest it 

merely for your assistance, is the fact that in some 

cases your Commission laid down conditions that these 

things be installed and then did not insist upon them 

being installed. Apart from that, I do not think it 

affects you very much. 

MR. BARBER: I agree with that 
what 

THE COMMISSIONER: That is subject to/Mr. Gowans may say. 

MR. BARBER: I quite agree with that; but I think it will be found 

in the cases were we laid down that position and did not 

enforce it, it was not a reserved forest. I have one 

case particularly in mind of a certain mill which was 

on Crown land, on a protected forest, not a reserved 

forest, where the mill site right was issued by the Lands 

Department, not the Forests Commission. 

THE COMMISSIONER: But the licence to cut was in your power* 

MR. BARBER: Yes. 

THE COMMISSIONER: We will not argue it now; I do not wish to 

interrupt your opening, but I do not want you to labor 

things with which you need not be concerned, if Mr. 

Gowans takes the same view as I do. 

MR. BARBER: Then I pass on to the question of the Proclamation. 

Quite frankly, when I first appeared before this Commission 

I was rather inclined to feel I ought to espouse the 

proclamation and its causes, but I think we have all come 

to the conclusion now that the proclamation as administered 

in the past will have to be altered )  that it will have to 

be less rigid, both as to area and time. I do not think 
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there will be any of my witnesses who will dispute that. 

To have it less rigid will be a sensible thing and one 

that is necessary. We have learned lessons from these fires, 

just as we have learned lessons from previous fires. 

There is just one other matter I wish to deal with 

before coming to the question of the actual evidence I 

propose to call, and that is the effectiveness of the pre-

cautions taken prior to January 1939. You have had sime 

evidence as to this already, to the effect that in general 

the precautions that had been taken prior to January 1939 

were sufficient for and did, in fact, lead to the control 

in most instances of local fires. In other words, there 

were plenty of small fires that started in various forest 

areas, many fires started and most of them were put out, 

and put out after they had damaged only fairly small areas. 

Of course, it was the big fire that came from some area — 

in the first instance it was a small fire to begin with — 

but taking most of the forest areas really damaged, it was 

the big fire that swept over the country that did the damage, 

a fire that was beyond the Wm ability of mortal man to stop; 

but taking it for all in all, our precautions were effective 

to stop ordinary fires of local origin. 

That is all i desire to say in general. I turn 

now very briefly to state the actual evidence I will be 

calling. Your Honor has heard the evidence of the Forests 

Commissionts men in the field, the forestry officers. I 

will complete that evidence by calling four inspectors from 

four areas, each of which is different from the other. I ata 

calling Nr. Hayden, from the Northern district, Mr. Code 

from the Western District, Mr. Galbraith from the Gippsland 

district, and Mr. Gerraty from the Central district. The 

evidence of Mr. Hayden will interest you for this reason, 

that he had practically no fires at all. The area of 
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of country burnt in the bad fires in Mr. Haydents district 

was only 1.2 per cent - that is the Northern district, from 

Bendigo, north up to the Murray. 

THE COMMISSIONER: Is there much to burn up there? 

MR. BARBER: Yes. i hear numerous remarks from the other end of 

the table that the area is mainly sand. 

THE COMMISSIONER: I did not hear that; but there must be two 

minds thinking alike. 

MR. BARBER: Yes, but there is a considerable area of timber in the 

Murray district. However, it is a very different district 

from the Gippsland and Central districts, and for that very 

reason I am calling Mr. Hayden to tell the Commission why 

it is his area is so free from fires - partly because of the 

natural conditions, but there are also other factors in his 

district, and I think he does hold out one of the few rays 

of hope in this inquiry, that some day other districts may 

in the course of development get bearer to the happy position 

in his district. Mr* Code, in the Western district, is not 

in such a happy position as Mr. Hayden in the Northern 

district, but he does represent conditions that are typical 

in the Western district, and which should be placed before 

the Commission. Mr. Galbraith and Mr. Gerraty, from the 

Gippslaad and Central districts are, of course, representat-

ive of districts through which Your Honor has travelled. 

THE COMMISSIONER: Would you mind repeating those district. I 

just want to get them imprinted on my mind, the names of 

those places. 

MR. BARBER: Mr* Codes district is called the Western district; 

that includes Ballarat and extends right over to the South 

Australian border. 

THE COMMISSIONER: What do you call the Central district? 

MR. BARBER: I do not know if I have a map showing the district. 

THE COMMISSIONER: Would it include Macedon? 
MR. GOWANS: I think it would extend into Rubicon and Woods point* 
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MR. BARBER: Mr. Gerratyts headquarters are at Berwick and his area 

runs east and north-east of Melbourne. It starts down at 

Wonthaggi, the coast line being the boundary, it runs up to 

the Tanjil country, it includes Traralgon, it runs through 

Neerim and up to Wonnangatta. 

THE COMMISSIONER: It runs right up to Wonangatta? 

MR. BARBER: Yes, on the plan it appears to do so. 

MR. GOWANS: That is the Wonnangatta forest. 

MR. BARBERt Then Mr. Galbraith has the Gippsland district.. 

THE COMMISSIONER: The eastern district covers all the rest of the 

State to the east. 

MR. BARBER: It covers the Gippsland district, except the North east. 

THE COMMISSIONER: You have no eastern district, Gippsland is 

really the eastern district. 

MR. BARBER: Yes, there is the north-eastern district, but that is 

different. These four gentlemen will conclude the evidence 

I desire to call from what I term the field side. I will 

then turn to the administrative side, confining it to the 

administration so far as it affects bush fires, fire pre-

vention and fire fighting. At the head of the administration 

I am calling the Chairman, who will describe the developments 

of the forest policy and fire policy in the Department, as 

have stated, its development through the years since the 

Commission has been formed. in addition to certain general 

matters that he will deal with, he will also present the 

future policy of the Forests Commission. I am also calling 

Mr. M. E. Bill, the Chief Draftsman, who will give the story 

behind the areas controlled. Then I will call Mr. Carver, 

who is the Publicity Officer and the Honorary Secretary, so 

far as the Bush Fire Brigades are concerned; he is the 

Secretary of the Bush Fire Brigades. In addition to giving 

evidence about publicity and educational work of the Depart-

ment, he will also give the Department's end of the Bush Fire 
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Brigade administration. Then I will call Mre Torbet, the 

Chief Fire Protection Officer, to discuss general aspects 

of fire fighting, in addition to discussing the co-ordinated 

plan we have heard of already. I also propose calling mro 

Lakeland, who is an expert, to supplement and comment on 

Mr. Stromts evidence in relation to erosion. I think at 

the present moment that comprises the names of all those I 

will be calling. That is all I desire to say in way of 

opening, and if convenient I might proceed to call my first 

witness after the luncheon adjournment. 

THE COMMISSIONER: Very well. 

LUNCHEON ADJOURNMENT. 
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ON  RESUMIN AT 2015 p.ma 

MR. BARBER: Before actually calling my first witness, I produce 

for the information of Your Honor a brief summary of the fire 

protection policy of the Forests Commission of Victoria in 

respect to field practices prior to the incidents of the 1939 

fires. That will be identified by Mr. Galbraith, the Chairman 

of the Commission, but I hand it to Your Honor, so that you 

may find it of use in following the evidence* 

lutaaajlaugau Lmr Sworn and Examined* 

MR. BARBER: Your name is Thomas Francis Hayden, you are the Inspector 

of Forests at Bendigo, and are in charge of the Northern 

Division?. Yes* 

You entered the forest service in 1905?--® yes. 

After entering the service, where did you serve?--' First of all at 

Maryborough, then in the East GippsiAnd  district, the Neerim 

district, Warburton, Mildura and Yarram districts, until I was 

appointed as Inspector of the Modbum: Northern Division in 1933, 

since which time I have been stationed at Bendigo. 

What is the area of the reserved forests in the Northern Division? '.-

There is a total of 643,321 acres, 507,834 of which are 

reserved forests and the balance protected forests.. 

Will you tell us something of the nature of the various areas under 

your control?-- The types of forest in the Northern Division 

include Bed gum and black box areas on the river areas, which 

are inclusive of the Barmah, Gunbower, Kerang and Swan Hill 

districts. Then there are the box ironbark forests in the 

central portion of the division, including the Bendigo, Heath-

cote, Rushworth and Castlemaine districts, with a little stringy 

bark and messmate in the southern portion of the Castlemaine 

district. We have 5,000 acres of Murray pine forest in the 

Mitiama district, known as the Terrick pine forest. During 

the 1938-39 fire season, there were sixteen outbreaks of fire 

in the Northern Division. Comparatively speaking, they were 

small outbreaks that were detected early and confined to 
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restricted areas. Altogether 1,300 acres of forest was burnt 

over The percentage of burnt forest to the whole area is .2 

per cent. 

Can you tell us why there was such a low percentage of burning in 

your division?-- There are a number of contributory factors. 

First of all, forest areas in the Northern division are easy 

of access, the forest country being comparatively level. In 

addition, roads and tracks are numerous. in the past we have 

taken the different existing tracks through the areas, main. 

tained them, and used them chiefly as fire lines for communi-

cation purposes* 

Are they in a condition to permit of 

those tracks are fit for motor 

of the country, it is easy to keep those tracks in good order. 

The forest is of an open nature, with an absence of heavy 

scrub and undergrowth. The local population in the north is 

more fire conscious than in other parts. Landholders and 

residents appreciate the value of these forests, because they 

supply local timber and fuel needs. In many districts timber 

is scarce. Volunteer bush fire brigades are fairly numerous 

and well organised, and the co—operation between the brigades, 

the local population and forestry officers has always been good. 

The clearing of privately owned land for grazing and pastoral 

pursuits has reached a stage where fire is an enemy to the 

landholder, and cannot in any sense be regarded as of assistance 

to him. The good markets which exist have led to intensive 

organisation of the forests for management, with the result 

that they are well subdivided. By that, I mean most of the 

forests are under a working plan and are subdivided into 

compartments which are surrounded by fire lines* 

Are all the compartments of a similar area, or do they vary in size?... 

They are laid out with a view to most workable conditions, 
having regard to the topography of the country, varying from 

motor transport?-- Yes, all 

traffic, and owing to the poverty 

1930* 



200 to 300,acres in some cases, to 500 or 600 acres in others. 

The divisions between them are 10 feet vide and are kept 

throughly clean. In a great many instances those divisions, 

or fire lines as they were originally intended to be, are now 

used as communication tracks, and for the extraction of forest 

produce. 

You did not mention that the forest waste is reduced to a minimum?*. 

Yes. The demand is so keen for fuel in the north )  that the 

waste wood is reduced to a minimum. Those comments apply 

chiefly to box and ironbark country, and the areas are practice 
pine 

cally clean. With regard to the/forest at Terrick, similar 

conditions apply )  although the nature of the country is 

altogether different. That country is surrounded by wheat 

growing land. The forest is fenced, and is subdivided into work. 

able blocks, with the lines surrounding the blocks. On that 

area we have excavated sufficient dams for our purpose )  and in 

addition a good deal of clearing and thinning  out has been done. 

In that country, that is very good protection from fire. The 

red gum forests in the northern river areas are not in such a 

fire-proof condition entirely. The demand for the cheaper 

kind of forest produce, such as fuel, etc., is not so keen )  con. 

sequently we have a good deal of waste on the ground there. In 

connection with those forests, they adjoin the Murray River on 

the north, which is a very effective fire break, and follow 

more or less a narrow strip along the river, which is very easily 

patrolled. Those forests are cut up with very good tracks ) 

 traffickable for motor or any other transport, and the patrolling 

of the area is quite an easy matter. 

Some cleeper hewing is performed in those forests?-- Yes, and that 

also assists us greatly. There are a large number of sleeper 

hewers throughout the forest, and practically all the time they 

have quantities of sleepers in the forests. Naturally they do 

not want to see a fire, and if an outbreak occurs, they give us 

great assistance in fighting or suppressing it. We get similar 
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co-operation from the saw millers. In those fthrests we have 

five red gum saw mills, 

I suppose your forest foreman would be continually supervising the 

sleeper hewers and the mills?-- Yes, inthe red gum forests the 

whole of the conversion is controlled by the forest foreman. 

The trees are branded for felling, afterbeing selected by the 

foreman. They are marked for the sleeper hewers and the millers. 

The trees are measured and branded afterwards, and the sleepers 

branded at the stump. The foremen are continually in touch with 

the work, and the disposal of tops and that kind of thing is kept 

right up to date all the time. 

Do I understand that the Commission selects what trees are to be 

felled or milled?-- That has been the policy for many years in 

the red gum forests. 

What has been the result; what are the forests like now after that 

practice?-- One mill at Echuca has been in operation for sixty.. 

four years, and is still going strong. It does not get all its 

supplies from Victoria. On an average we give it close on one 

million feet in logs annually, and they get a similar amount 

from New South Wales. 
That 
2kie mill has been on the same site all the time?-.- Yes. 

Is there much forest left, or what has been the result of its oper-

ations?-- At the present time in that forest, we have about 130 

sleeper hewers working. They are continually employed by the 

Railway Department, and I can see a good few years ahead Yet. 

Another factor militating against fire up there is floods?-- Yes, we 

are fortunate in that, in a normal season, we have floods in the 

rivers. We look for them as one of our greatest means of regen.. 

eration in the red gum area. The floods in that part of the 

Murray..district areusually not received very much before Christmas 

timed As a result we have a good deal of green herbage, and a 

number of swamps and low parts are filled with water, which lasts 

into well into January. In normal seasons in the northern areas, 

we do not have much fear from fire. There has been no flooding 

for two years, consequently this year those conditions did not 

obtain, and it was very dry. 
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It might be thought that the natural conditions were such that there 

never would be fires in that area. Has the position improved 

in recent years with regard to the amount of fore there?. Yes, 

the position is continually improving, and improvement works 

were carried out in the districts. I should mention that in 

the red gum, as well as in the box areas, improvements have been 

made as money was available. We have gangs on thinning out and 

cleaning up areas* That all acts as fire protection work* 

Prior to 1900, fires were fairly numerous, and we have evidence 

of that in the red gum areas to-day. In fact, it is one of the 

troubles we are up against, that a number of the trees are fire 

scarred. Ins electing the logs for the mills, we find that 

quite a number are damaged as the result of the old fires. Old 

residents tell me that it was a common thing for about every 

four or five years to have a good big fire right through the 

area. In those days, quite a deal of the country was let as a 

grazing lease to one or two people* 

The development in the way of clearing the forests, together with the 

fact that there is a good market for the timber - a combination 

of those things with natural features of the country bring about 

that excellent state of affairs?,-. ►  That is so. 

Do you think a similar state of affairs could ever be brought about in 

other parts of the State?-- I do, but I appreciate there is a 

tremendous difference between natural conditions in the north 

and in other sectors* I do believe that the intensification of 

markets, marketing and management, and the completion of clear-

ing of privately owned timber and scrub land would lead, per-

haps, not to similar conditions, but towards that end* At the 

same time, I would emphasise that I think that protection from 

fire in the southern districts will always be a much more serious 

matter than it is in the north. 

I suppose the intensification of marketing and management is dependent 

on population eventually?-- That is so. 
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What works of a fire protection value have you carried out in your 

division?. There has been a considerable amount of work 

done. I have some figures relating to that which I shall 

give briefly. These records go back prior to the Commission 

taking charge. Taking the whole of the division, our records 

show that we have, up to the present, thinned and cleaned 

139,175 acres; there were five firebreaks constructed to a 

total of 14,529 chains, and roads and tracks of a total of 

4,660 chains. We have 81 dams, and many of these dams were 

excavated while othere,in the central portion of the area were 

old mining dams which were cleaned out and repaired, and we use 

them now for water storage. Then we have one well-equipped 

lookout tower on Mt. Ida that controls three districts - the 

Rushworth, the Heathcote and the Bendigo districts. 

And that is of value?.- Yes. The tower is connected by telephone. 

I do not know of any fire that has occurred in this district 

that has not been notified from the lookout within a few 

minutes of starting, except )  of course, in smoky or hazy weather. 

When he reports a fire from the lookout you are able to go straight 

away to attend to is?-- Yes. 

And haveyou any figures relating to the cleaning of compartment fire 

lines?..- NO, but that is a system we have worked on. As we 

improve the lines, we insist that they be kept in order. We 

do not resort to burning. The timber is felled and the lines 

are kept clean. 

What is your general policy as regards fire protection in your 

division?. The policy we have adopted in the northern division 

has been to thin and clear the areas, and I do not think 

could advocate any policy but the continuation of the efforts we 

have made so far. 

And these efforts have been successful?• Yes, these efforts comma. 

enced about forty years ago and they are successful. 

Do you think you could have a few more (lama?. Yes. The more water 

we store the better. With our present organisation )  we went 
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through the past summer very well. I think we were almost 100 

per cent successful, and I think I am justified in suggesting 

that that policy should be continued. 

Do you undertake any patch burning?-- We do not do that at All o  

Why not?-- In many areas, in other portions of the State where the 

fires are serious, I consider patch burning is necessary, but 

in my on division this operation is unnecessary. Full pre-

cautions are taken without resorting to that practice. 

It would have the ordinary harmful effects without any adequate comp. 

pensation in the way of protection so far as your division is 

concerned?-- Yes, in portions of the northern division the 

tendency is to try to preserve the cover, and by burning we 

would get rid of that. If that were done, the timber would be 

damaged and the conservation of moisture would be affected, 

and moisture is necessary in areas where there is a light rain 

fall. 

You enjoy pretty good co-operation by all concerned in your division?. 

Yes, we have really more grass fires on private properties than 

forest fires. The officers and employees of the Commission are 

frequently called upon to assist, and that assistance is always 

given. I look upon this matter rather in a selfish light )  int 

because I consider it is always better to fight a fire in the 

other manes territory than wait until it gets into your own. 

Landholders generally give active co-operation. 

THE COMMISSIONER: How long is it since you have had a really big 

forest fire in your territory?- We had one fire that might 

have been serious during the bad week in the Castlemaine 

district. That fire burnt about 500 acres. 

There is no really big timber in the Castlemaine area, is there?-- Yes, 

in the south where the boundary gets down towards Daylesford, 

near the headwaters of the Loddon. I think there was a fire in 

the Bendigo area some 8 or 10 years ago which burnt an area of 

ironbark, and I heard this morning that some say that it was 

practically impossible to kill ironbark by fire. In that case, 
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at any rate, the whole block was killed, and we had to fell 

every stick of it. 

You co-operate with the landholders and they co-operate with you?-- 

The co-operation is all that can be desired in the north* 

Have you anything to say about the provision of labor and equipment 

in dealing with forest fires?-- The employment of regular gangs 

from any and every forest work has always provided sufficient men 

for ordinary fire protection and suppression. in the event of 

outbreaks, these men serve as firefighting gangs, and being ex-

perienced men and in constant employment, they prove very 

efficient. 'le use patrols and fireguards in about four districts 

during the summer, and we have the usual appliances for fire 

fighting, axes, rakes, spray pumps, etc., which are kept at handy 

depots, readily accessible in case of outbreaks. 

There is a fair amount of grazing land in your area?-- The grazing in 

the northern division does not affect the bush fires at all. 

Why?..- The country is clean for the most part. We have not the same 

scrub, and I have never on any occasion known of an outbreak of 

fire to be attributable to graziers there. During the summer in 

the northern areas the conditions are such that every blade of 

grass is valuable, and firing  by graziers would be madness* The 

graziers go out of their way to stop fires. 

THE COMMISSIONER: How do fires start in your area?.-- The fires we 

have are usually along the river, and in almost 100 per cent of 

the cases they are attributable to fishermen and others travell-

ing along the river areas. In many cases people fish at night, 

probably on Saturday night, and if that night happens to be cold, 

the first thing these persons do is to light fires, in some cases 

against stumps or logs, and probably the next day they go away 

leaving the fire burning. We have men patrolling on Sundays and 

holidays. In practically every case the fires start through 

norance and we do not as a result institute prosections because 

we think that the kickback might be worse than the other method of 

dealing with these matters* 
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MR. BARBER: What do you mean by the ukickbacko? 

THE COMHISSIONER: By starting a campaign of recrimination?-- Yes. 

Usually we give the offenders a heart-to-heart lecture and 

nothing of the sort happens again so far as they are concerned. 

That offence is decreasing, and regular fishermen usually safe• 

guard these areas, and when they see anyone lighting fires in 

wrong places, they ask them to put them out, or to light them 

elsewhere. 

The graziers then do not give you any trouble. Of course it is ad-

mitted that the graziers do light fires in other divisions, and 

the reason why they do not do so in your division is attributable 

to what you have told us. 

THE COMMISSIONER: It does not them theml-- It does not suit theme 

MR. BARBER: Whar are your views regarding the proclamation?-- I do 

not believe that the issue of the proclamation in December and 

prolonging it to March over the greater part of the State is 

beneficial or necessary. Its application to particular areas 

and its duration should be more elastic. For a considerable 

portion of the northern division, the enactment of the proclami 

ation is unnecessary, and for this reason I regard it more as a 

piece of restrictive legislation which could be done away with 

in certain areas, and rigorously applied and enforced in certain 

other areas for a definite periods. 

You know the Gippsland area; do you regard the proclamation as being 

beneficial there?-- Not for a long period. 

You would like it to be rigorously enforced for a shorter period?---

When it is necessary to bring that proclamation into force due 

to dangerous conditions, I consider that the danger should be 

such as to warrant the prohibition of fires altogether. I do 

not believe in the idea of giving anyone a permit to burn during 

the term of a proclamation, because it is impossible for the 

average man to carry out the rules and the regulations. The 

only permit you should give in that case is a permit to burn 

stumps. The proclamation provides that fires must be put out 

at a certain time. How can that be done? 
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What is the southern limit of your division?. So that you will 

understand it more readily, I would say that it reaches as far 

as Malmsbury; take a line across towards Daylesford and back 

through Newstead, and then it goes up to the north of the river. 

You take in a certain amount of the Mallee?-- No. Swan Hill and a 

little bit of the Mallee. Maccdamixiradrakax 

You do not take in the northern Mallee?-- That is in the northern 

division. 

You do not go as far west as the Ouyen district?-- Not now. 

I understand the boundaries were altered a couple of years ago?-- yes. 

How many forestry officers have you got in your division?. I have 15. 

I have. 14 staff officers and quite a number of temporary epo• 

ployees. You might term then permanent temporary employees 

because they are foremen, etc., who have been with the Commission 

for many years and who supervise sleeper hewing, mill felling, 

improvement gangs and so forth. 

What about the staff officers?. Are they young and inexperienced? 

The average age works out at exactly 48 years. The youngest man . 

the officer in charge of the Barmah district — is 33 years of 

age, and the ages of the others range from 61 downwards to 49, etc. 

All of them, I presume, have had many years' experience?-- yes, all 

experienced men. 

MR. SWINDON: You have had a lot of money given you to expend on 

unemployed relief work for thinning for timber for sustenance 

workers?. yes. 

There are 50 brigades in the northern district, and 15 of them are 

registered. Do you get any great assistance from them during 

bush fires?-- Yes. We get a great deal of assistance from the 

bush fire brigades. Quite a number of our officers have held 

office with them, and we regard them as a very valuable 

acquisition in fire protection. 

Have ydu any idea as to the reason why a number of the brigades have not 

joined up with the association?. I think it is probably due to 
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the fact that when there is an absence of fire in the north 

there is less interest. Probably in seasons like this, the men 

may be veryearnest for 12 months or so, but if we get a fairly 

wet season they just slip a little. The brigades, particularly 

round our forest areas, are continually in touch with us, and 

they always function well, keeping themselves right up to date* 

You have never heard of any reports from brigade men that they were 

averse to joining up with the association because of the risk of 

being absorbed or being brought under some Government department?. 

There is a feeling among the farming community, particularly in 

isolated country districts, that ything the Government fathers 

should be viewed with suspicion* 

TI COMMISSIONER: They always thing there is a catch in it somewhere?. 

Yes, they do* That feeling exists mainly among the diehards in 

the north. I have tried to tell them otherwise, but they cannot 

see why the think sAould have been started down here. Their idea 

is that it should have been started from the country. 

You mean the bush fire brigades organisation?. Yeso 

MR. SWINDON: They do not silk want to be controlled from Collins Street?- 

That is so. 

You are also a membet of the bush fire brigades' committee? 	I am 

one of the Commission's representatives on that committee* 

You have an opinion, I suppose, that the brigades have not sufficient 

powers. Do you think the brigades should have power to take pre. 

ventive measures before fires have a chance of arising?- I do 

not think I should be led into that too deeply. I certainly 

think  certain powers should be given to the brigades. The Bush 

Fire Brigade movement will not be much good if it is just going 

to be used as a fire suppression organisation because, while 

that might be all right in my district, I think they should go a 

little further and do something in the matter of fire prevention* 

The old saying still holds good, "prevention is better than cure,fl 
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and that goes for every day of the week. I do not see how the 

brigades cam function successfully if they are not given some 

rights to enable them to use preventive measures. 

The Forests Commission has supplied a fair amount of equipment in your 

division?-- Yes. There is quite a number of brigades in my 

division. In the smaller districts, and particularly around the 

old abandoned mining towns where the people are not so well off, 

we have supplied a good deal of equipment. 

Do you remember being at the Castlemaine conference when one of the bri- 

gade representatives objected to the method of having to ring up 

Melbourne to get permission to go to a fire?-- yes. 

That shows that some of the brigades do not understand the position?. 

Yes. 

THE COMMISSIONER: Do they have to ring up Melbourne for such a purpose?. 

NO, Sir. 

MR. SWINDON: This brigade had the idea that because the fire from con- 

trol officer was also the Secretary of the Association it was 

necessary to apply to him to be able to go out to right a fire. 

THE COMMISSIONER: There were no printed forms to be sent out?. I do 

not think so. The brigade was not registered. 

How did they get that idea?-- Are they not properly informed?. 

MR. SWINDON: They get the bulletin and they are invited to come to meet- 

ings of the association. That is one of the reasons why the 

association thinks there should be an organiser or a fire chief 

who should go out and make some of these points clear. 

MR. SLATER: You started that you had 15 staff officers and that the 

average age was 48 years?. yes. 

And that the age of the youngest — you did not state his classification 

whether he was a forester or a cadet, was 33 years?. He is a 

forester. 

I assume that he graduated from Creswick?-- Yes. 

So that his experience in terms of years would be roughly about 157,— 

1940, 



THE COMMISSIONER* Not on the field?.-- I think he was a young student. 

MR. SLATER; I assume from his age that he was an early graduate. 

What would be his field experience?-- He had quite a lot of field 

experience. He was assistant in the Bendigo-Rushworth district, 

he was at Heathcote for a while, and at Barmah, and then he went 

to the western division for quite a number of years, and then came 

back and took charge of the Barmah district. 

I suppose he would move up in terms of regulation 71e-- That is so. 

He would require to be a cadet for a certain period before he could 

qualify. In fact, before he could qualify as a cadet, he would 

have to give three yearst efficient service as a trainee° Did 

that apply in his case?-- Yes. 

His cadetship would follow, with three years of efficient service?-- 

Yes. 

And assuming his promotion came automatically at the end of three 

years - can you say whether his promotion continued without a 

break?— They are usually promoted in the early stages, but even 

assistant foresters have to wait at times. 

Before they move into the next class they must give 3 yearst efficient 

service in their own class?-- Yes° 

But it does not follow that at the end of that service they are auto-

matically promoted into the higher grade?-- It depends upon the 

vacancies° 

Is it not a fact that there is often an extended period of service in 

one of these groups or classes before the officers are moved up 

to the higher classes?-- That often happens. 

Do you know whether that causes dissatisfaction from time to time?-- 

Nost I think they accept that as part of the exigencies of the 

Sergicee They may remark that they happen to have been born 

at the wrong time. 

(CONTINUED ON PAGE 1945)0 
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THE COMMISSIONER: I think I opened that point up wrongly this morn-

ing. It is merely a matter of private interest* 

MR. SLATER: In view of some of the evidence given, particularly at 

Alexandra - I have not seen other than press reports of the 

evidence at other places there seems to be a suggestion that 

the field officers lack experience, and that they are boys. 

think some wild and erroneous views were put to the 

Commission, and I want to establish definitely that my clients, 

the field officers, have been required to undergo a period of 

training and are obliged to serve for a number of years in each 

of their grades before being promoted to positions of respon-

sibility. I have only been provoked to take action because 

of observations made in the course of the inquiry by certain 

witnesses. 

THE COMMISSIONER: The chief complaint made by a number of witnesses 

wasp I think, that they regarded your officers as young and 

rather inexperienced, and more particularly that they are put 

into districts with which they are not familiar. I am just re-

calling what the trend of the evidence was. I am not express-

ing any view on it yet. A man nearing the century mark might 

look upon you and me as a pair of irresponsible youngsters. 

It is only a matter of degree* 

MR. SLATER: There are not many officers near the century mark. 

THE COMMISSIONER: Not in the service, but some of the outside critics 

seem to be near that mark. 

MR. HARDY: (To Witness): in your district are there any desirable 

areas of red gum along the Murray that are not included in your 

area-- There are a few, but there are not many left now that 

are not included. 

In your own forest, is grazing limited to cattle?. We have sheep. 

The pine forest is grazed entirely by sheep* 

what is the effect of that on seedlings?-- The forest at present is 

over stocked, and we are thinning it out as fast as we can. 

That refers mostly to the pine forest?-- Yes* 
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What about red gum?--- Along the waterfront we have cattle, in the 

Barmah district grazing is all under agistment. We have a 

herdman, a staff man who is employeed continuously. He takes 

charge of that common and at times we have as many as 3,000 

head of cattle grazing there. 

You would rather have cattle than sheep, if you can get them?-- The 

Murray River country is not good enough country for sheep, 

because of the swamps and liability to flooding. Sheep are 

inclined to get footrot. 

The objsection is not on account of the sheep eating the seedlings?---

There is that objection too. Personally, I do not like sheep 

in hardwood forests* 

Are there any Crown land areas on the Murray frontage containing red 

gum where sheep are grazed?-- I do not know of any. 

MR. GOWANS: You do not suggest that your district is a very tough 

one from the point of view of fire fighting?.-- I do not. 

Fire fighting is a rough job?-- It is. 

A young man's job?-- That is so. 

Have you compared the average age in your area with the average age 

in Gippsland?.- Yeso 

How do they compare?..- My men are certainly older. 

Your division is not typical in that respect?-- No. 

We have been told again and again that the policy of the Forests 

Commission has become reprehensible since 1918. Have you, in 

your experience, found that there has been a change in fire 

fighting policy since 1918.7.0 There has certainly been an 

improvement. 

In what respect?-- In the first place, we did not work under an Act 

prior to the Commission coming in. We had to depend on the 

Police Offences Act or something else when dealing with fires. 

We now have Section 69, 

What about the policy as distinct from legislation?-- We were a 

Department for a time, and have been branches of the Lands 

Department and of other Departments. The only men we could 
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EMPLoy for fire fighting were the fire guards, of whom there 

were one, two, or at the most, three in a district* There 

were some fire breaks in some of the northern districts, but 

I do not think there were any elsewhere@ 

Were they wide breaks?-- Three chain breaks originally. 

Water conservation was unknown?-- It was unthought of* 

Lookouts?-- We did not have any. 

There was nothing in the nature of the publicity propaganda that the 

Commission now uses?-- No. 

Since the Forests Commission came into existence, have you noticed 

changes in policy with respect to the use of breaks?-- Yes, I 

have* 

perhaps you can tell us roughly what those changes have been?-- The 

old school of thought among foresters was that a break was to 

stop a fire. That idea originated probably in plantations, 

where such breaks were certainly of some use. That policy was 

carried on for a time in some of the wet and mountain ash 

forests in the south, but it was found that they were not a pre-

ventive of fires and that a narrow strip was just as usefu 1* 

Do you mean an access line?-- Yes, really. 

When did the policy of using access line in preference to breaks 

come into operation as part of the policy of the Commission?---

I should think somewhere about 1928 or 1929* 

And has it been accepted as the policy of the Commission so far as you 

know since that time?. Yes* 

I understand that there have been changes in the width of the access 

lines, and they are now regarded as communication lines?-- 

Except that they are also of value for burning back* 

Roads are a more recent development as a matter of policy? -- Yes, 

that is so* 

How long ago did the Commission decide to adopt the idea of roads 

that could be traversed?-- The roading or tracking system was 

in operation in the north for a good number of years. 
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While you were in charge there?.. Before my time. It was a matter of 

finance to bring that into operation in the southern districts, 

where the proposition is more difficult. 

When you say it was in vogue in the north, did you have the roads al. 

ready?... In most cases, yes. 

And in the south you had to make them?-- Yes. 

How long is it since the Commission definitely adopted the policy of 

making roads with money available for fire control?... I did 

a certain amount of that work myself at yarram some seven years 

ago. 

Do you receive any communications from the Commission that itts policy 

is in favor of making traversable roads?.. Yes, definitely. 

When do you get them?.. From time to time. 

Not every year, or every six months?--I think so. We have a circular 

at the beginning of the year drawing our attention to the fact 

that any roads we have must be kept in trafficable condition, 

and that we must notify the Commission at once of any other 

roads that we deem necessary. For the last five years, I have 

been away from the districts where that is necessary, and I 

have not concerned myself with it. 

Have you been still receiving the circulars?... yes. 

THE COMMISSIONER: Would it be necessary to instruct an experienced 

man like yourself to keep a road trafficable?-• It is a 

circular so that we will not forget. 

MR. GOWANS: Is it sent to you or the District Officer?-- To all 

District Officers. 

What about yourself?... I get a copy of it, too. 

THE COIvIIISSIONE2.: Is it not your job to keep those matters in mind 

and to see that they are done?... That is so, and of course I 

do that, but the Commission adopts the safeguard of reminding 

us that they must be done. 

On whose advice do they give those instructions?-- It is usually done 

as the result of a conference held every year before the fire 
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season. In recent years those conferences have been held in 

the various divisions. The officers in those divisions are 

called together and any suggestions that crop up in the light 

of their experiences are taken into account by the Commission, 

and alterations and improvements are put into operation, if 

the Commission has the means of doing them. 

BAR. GOWANS: Have $ou ever knwon any of those circulars to tell you 

that the Commission has undergone a change of heart and has 

decided to change its policy?... Not as bluntly as that. 

You have never seen the authorised version of the Forests Commissionts 

policy printed in this form?-- No. 

I suppose there were divergencies of opinion expressed among you older 

men?... Yes. 

I suppose you were not all unanimous about breaks?-- There was quite 

a deal of controversy about that. 

It took a while for it to come into operation?... Yes. 

You would not be giving away any State secrets if you said that it 

took some time to convince the Commission?-- I must say that 

with regard to those conferences )  the Commission usually xgptixt 

accepted the majority decision. If they found that District 

Officers were unanimous, the Commission usually did not offer 

any objection. 

The officers had to be unanimous?... Or almost so. 

THE CONII1SSIONER: If there was a practical man on the Commission who 

differed from the rest, whose view was accepted?-- The Chair. 

man, if he presided, told us that we were there as officers and 

that he wanted us to give our views and not to be afraid. The 

Commissionwere quite prepared, I think, to accept the decision. 

MR. GOWNS: That is 2  if you reached a decision?... Yes. 

And sometimes you were not unanimous?•- Yes. 

THE COMMISSIONER: There must have been occasions when you did not 

report?-• Yes, I am talking specially of fire conferences. 
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Practically everything in connection with fire prevention and 

suppression was gone thoroughly into. 

You spoke of certain roads at Yarram. What was thought to be their 

value then?..- We were just then getting more motor vehicles 

into use. my idea was to have the tracks open and used for 

communication purposes, and also to burn back from them and make 

them into fire lines. I think those lines are still in existence, 

and that the work is still being carried on. 

MR. GOWANS: At what stage did the Commission, apart from the officers, 

become road-minded in this respect?..- It did not concern my 

Division. I think one of the other inspectors could give more 

definite information. 

Nor can you fix any time when they abandoned the old idea of breaks 

and adopted the idea of fire lines?-- From memory, I cannot fix 

a time* 

The Commission has definitely abandoned the idea of breaks?-- That is 

so. For many years, it was never seriously accepted* 

What about the policy of breaking up large areas? Did you ever hear 

that expressed before as part of the Forests Commissionts policy?. 

Not before. 

In your evidence this afternoon, you told us that you had broken up 

areas by fire lines?-- Yes. 

Are they just grass tracks?-- That is all* 

That could hardly be called breaking up the areas?e— They are for 

convenience of working. We know the acreage of the areas, and 

we, therefore, know exactly the amount of work done without making 

a survey. If a block of 300 or 400 acres has been improved, we 

know what has been done. 

THE COMMISSIONER: Is that something that is done on a map, or is the 

area cut up by roadsand lines?-- It is definitely surveyed, and 

the lines are run by survey. 

Round each compartment?-- The lines form the breaks. 

In what forests does that occur?..- In the central forest - the box, 
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ironbark forest. 

What are the sizes of the compartments?-- Between 200 or 300, and 600 

acres, according to the topography of the country. 

MR. GOWANS: That is an area where there is no scrub?-- Not much 

scrub. 

THE COMMISSIONER: Is it done in any other forest?-- In the western 

district. I think it is carried out in the Ballarat-Creswick 

forest. 

MR. GOWANS: They are special forests in which it is done?'- Yes. 

Do you treat that as a matter of policy?-- Yes, definitely. 

Do you do it everywhere?-- It is being continued. The idea is to do 

it everywhere. 

THE COMISSIONER: When did that idea first gain favor with the 

Commission?•- It has been in existence for twelve or fourteen 

years at least. 

MR. GOWANS: Can you think of any other forest where it has been put 

into operation in those twelve or fourteen years?.-- No, I 

cannot. It was not in existence in any of the districts I was 

in during that time. 

Water conservation in your area is fairly easy?-- It is easy to make 

storages, but not so easy to keep them full. 

It is harder to make them in other places than in your areas?-- Yes, 

it may be to make them to the same capacity. It is quite a 

simple matter to store water in a heavy rainfall district - 

that is to say, to have smaller storages, and to have more of 

them. 

Do you know of any other district where there are as many as eightyone 

dams?-- Nb, I have not been over the other divisions? 

That policy has been of fairly recent growth?-- Yes. 

During the last three years?-- Three or four. 

Is it a fair criticism that, if the Commission had started earlier on 

these lines, its efforts would have been more effective in the 

recent outbreak?-- Yes, but it must be taken into account that 

the idea of using water in bush fires was never thought of in 
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the old days. It was only with the introduction of some kind of 

pump, and particularly of spray pumps, that the idea of storing 

water came to be entertained. 

(CONTINUED ON PAGE 1953)* 
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THE COMMISSIONER: Where did the spray pumps come from; who thought 

of them, some outside inventor?---I think they are an 

American idea in the first placed 

No one thought that it would be a good idea to get sprays?---Apparently 

not. 

MR. GOWANS: When did you first see one?---I think about 6 or 7 years 

ago 

THE COMMISSIONER: You see, a spray is not something new to science; 

it is very well known?---That is so. 

We are all accustomed to see sprays used in various types of activity, 

Had it never occurred to anybody the spraying of 

water would be a valuable and helpful method?---I 

suppose they had, but the only idea they had was to 

carry it in some kind of vessel and use it in water-

ing cans or something of that kind° The idea of a 

spray with a force arrangement had not occurred to 

anybody° 

How long is it since it has been in use abroad; is it in use abroad?---

It is in use, yes° I could not tell you how long it 

has been in use overseas. 

MR. GOWANS: Would that be a matter of policy for the Commission to 

lay down, or a matter that would be suggested. should 

be put into operation by divisional officers?---Yes, 

I suppose it would be regarded as the policy of the 

Commission. 	The Forests Commission readily accepted 

that idea, and spray pumps were distributed as soon as 

they could be got. 

Having got the pumps they began to think in terms of water?---That is sod 

MR. BARBER: There will be specific evidence called about that matter 

at a later Aximestagee 

THE WITNESS: I am sorry I cannot give more assistance; I did not think 

I would be questioned on that particular aspect. 

THE COMMISSIONER: That is all right; it is Counselts job to get some- 

thing you are not prepared fore 

MR. GOWANS: I am trying to see how much information you can give us° 
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Then there is the business of publicity propaganda which 

has come in a great deal since 1932?---Yes. 

That has definitely become part of the policy of the Commission as you 

understand it?---Yes. 

Is it correct to say not all of you are unanimous about the avlue of 

it?---Affe may not be unanimous about the particular line 

that it takes, but we are unanimous regarding the value 

of propaganda* 

I suppose you are not unanimous about the value of putting up hoardings 

with pictures of American forest timber? 

THE COEMISSIONKR: The witness at Kinglake, Mr. Gamble, said- the 

hoarding was made of American timber* 

ER. GOWANS: I thought he was complaining about the picture?---I do 

not see anything wrong with that. 	It is put there for the 

purpose of trying to remind the people? and I do not see that 

you can cavil very much at the particular style of that poster. 

I am just trying to find out what it was you people were rather at 

variance about in this matter. 	Has there been any develop- 

ments of opinion with regard to the question of suppressing 

fires - the manner of suppressing them?---No* 	The policy 

followed, or the unanimous opinion I think of all forestry 

officers as far as I know has been the suppression of 

anal]. fires* 	That is the means we have always agitated 

for* 	The road system comes into it here very largely. 

That has been the trouble in the past, the fact of getting 

to a fire in the early stages* 	We could not do that in 

the old days when we had not the proper means of transport* 

That again is bound up with the question of having lookouts properly 

imag installed, proper apparatus and so on?---That is so* 

You have one lookout in your district* 	Do you think that is enought-- 

Yes, quite enough in my district* 

You will not see over the whole of your division* 	You have separate 

19540 	 HAYDEN* 



areas?---Yes, and my country is practically level. 

Has it a telephone?---Yes. 

And a man always there?---A man is always there during the summer. 

THE COMMISSIONER: Where does the telephone lead to?---The headquarters 

of the district at Heathcote. 

MR. GOWANS: Looking back over the fire period this year s  are you quite 

• 
satisfied that the work you have been able to carry out $  and 

do you think anything further could have been done?---No, not 

in my division. 

You do not think anything further could have been done?-.--The work could 

have been increased or continued, but that is all. 

However, I think the lines we have done on that division are 

quite adequate. 

With regard to the 139,135 acres of thinnings, what period does that 

cover?---That covers since before the Commission took charge. 

Of course, some of the parts would be areas which would require thinning 

again by now?---Yes. 	A have mstaix rethinned some of those 

areas. 	We are on the third rethinning now. 

When you gave us that total does that include the same area more than 

once?---No )  that is the original figure. 

And what about your figure with regard to firebreaks, are they all new 

firebreaks?---No, they have been in existence many years. 

We do not now construct firebreaks; we still keep them clean )  

because they are now used mostly as breaks and roads. 

You did not give us any figure with regard to access lines?---That is 

included in those firebreaks. 

Are you satisfied with the amount of money that has been made available 

for you for fire control purposes?---Yes, in the northern 

division I am satisfied. 

And with the number of men you have had available for fire suppression?--- ,  

Yes. 

Apparently everything is lovely from your point of view?---Yes, I must 

agree with you there. 
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But you have had some experience in Gippsland?---Yes, I spent 15 years 

there altogether. 

What more do you think could be done in the Gippsland area to make it 

safer?---Quite a lot, but the first thing there is the 

spending of a lot of money to bring that about. 

think Mr* Code's division has started a system which 

could be with great advantage continued right throughout 

the rest of the areas in the States. 

The system that has been put in operation at Mt* Cole?---Yes. 

That is roading, water conservation and a little strip burning?---Yes, 

but getting on to that I do not favour at all the idea 

of burning in ash forests. 

I appreciate that, but do you think it might be possible to burn out-

side the forest?---Yes, use some of the poorer country 

as a buffer; but I do not favour the idea. 	I do not 

think it is practicable or possible to burn to any degree 

of satisfaction in ash. 

I suppose, like so many others, you think it could be done fairly safely 

in messmate areas?---Yes, it can ki but I would also 

like to say here that with improved methods of fire 

control the sooner we get away from continual patch burning 

the better* 	It is a necessary evil at the present timed 

In the Utopia of the North you can do awaywith that kind of thing?--- 

Yes. 

With r egard to fire protection measures on Crown lands, have you taken 

the view up there you are at liberty to do that?---Yes, 

we have done that 	I might mention in connectionwith 

our river forests we have that drip of three chains along 

the Murray river which was gazetted many years ago* 

That is a reserve for public services. 	It is Crown 

land and we regard that as part of our forest. 

That is a permanent reserve?---That is a permanent reserve, but it is 

Crown land. 	However, we have never made any difference 

with regaxd to our treatment on that area. 	In fact, we 
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have rather done more work on that froma fire prevention 

or fire protection measure than on possibly some of the 

adjoining forest )  because it is on that area we have all 

the campers. 

Of course )  in the case of a permanent reserve there is not the 

possibility of it ever being alienated with your fire 

improvement works on it?---No )  although there are quite a 

lot of camping sites in the residence are allotted from 

time to time in that reserve by the Lands Department° 

Are they still being allotted?---Yes. 

Is it valuable timber?---Yes, good in some places. 

What was your motive in putting in fire protection measures )  for 

the preserving of the valuable timber?---That is aoo 

Has it ever occurred to you )  or the other senior officers of the 

Forests Commission that there might be a duty to take fire 

protection measures on Crown lands and protected forests 

solely from the point of view of protecting the populace in 

general as distinct from merely protecting valuable strips 

of timber?---I do not think that aspect of it has actually 

cropped upo 

Whether it is right or wrong, it is fair to say the policy has been 

to carry out fire protection measures on Grown lands wherever 

it was necessary to protect valuable timber and for no other 

reason?---To protect valuable timber and also protect the 

adjoining forest. 

Which might contain valuable timber?---Yeso I might explain in that 

connection we have always regarded the tenure as very in- 

	

secure on protected forests. 	It did not seem to us quite 

the proper thing to spend a sum of money on putting improve-

ments on to land that may at any time be taken away )  and_ 

those improvements would *  of course, go as part of the land. 

THE COMMISSIONER: What concern of the Commission is that? How are 

they concerned; why do they do not do the best they can, and 

if some higher authority cares to take some of the land away 
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and make it useless how does that affect the Forests Commission?--- 

AS far as I am concerned personally I have no objection, but it 

just seems to us and we always put the view that we have prefer-

ence to our own reserve forestso 

MR. GOSANS: I can understand that )  but would it lie with you and the 

other divisional inspectors to adopt that view, or would that view 

be imposed on you by somebody higher up?---I do not know that it 

has been specially imposed; we just accepted that 

I was wondering how far it is a matter of policy at all for the Commission 

to carry out fire control measures on Crown land?---This point has 

very often cropped up in the Northern Division° 	If we were to 

take protection measures or resort to controlled burning on Crown 

lands we would probably destroy grass that alessee of the Lands 

Department was paying for. We did not feel disposed to do that 

I am not sufficiently acquainted with the law as to whether that 

man would regard us liable for the destruction of his property* 

I will not trouble you about that?---We have always been a little wary 

of taking those measures for that reasons 

That definitely has cropped up?---Yeso 

Has it ever been suggested, as fares youlnow )  that you simply had 

no power to do it?---No, I do not think it was definitely suggested 

or definitely understood that we had no power; but we accepted 

the view our powers are very limited* 

When it comes to a question of a divisional inspector in charge of a 

large area with fire menaces existing on Crown lands )  would you 

go a. bit further than that?---Yes, if I were in a. division where 

that cropped up I would not regard that; I would make whatever 

use I could of those lands if it came to a matter of that sort* 

THE COMMISSIONER: As a matter of not making danger, but as a matter 
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of policy for the future were you content to not do what 

you thought necessary because there was a doubt about 

your legal right. 	Would it never occur to the Forests 

Commission there was a Crown solicitor to advise them on 

those matters* 	They had this interest in this matter and 

if they had doubt about the legal position do you mean to 

say they would not ask the advice of the Crown Solicitor if 

they were in earnest?---He is there for that purpose I 

understand* 

Exactly, and I should have thought every public servant knew that* 

MR. GOWANS: I am not litixxixg throwing any blame on you* 

THE CONNISSIONER: I am not blaming Mr. Hayden or anybody else* 

It seems to me if the statement we are getting over and 

over again is put forward as a sincere one, it rather falls 

down on that point. 

MR. GOWAN'S: I ig fully appreciate the point. (To witness): With 

regard to the safety protections at Nhill I see that it 

is part of the policy of the Commission to see those 

protections are put into operation where there is any ele-

ment of danger. Would you tell me if you have ever heard 

in your experience of a mill owner having his cutting 

licence cancelled for breach of condition with regard to 

safety precautions?---No, I have not* 

Not in all your experience?---No, not in my experience. 

Although, as you know, there are conditions in his cutting licence, 

and sometimes his mill site licence with regard to sawdust 

retorts, clearing away two chains, sometimes dugouts and so 

on?---Yes. 

I think you t old us that you have your foremen looking after the 

cutting and milling operations of these sleeper cutters and 

mill owners. 	Is that the general practice, for the fore- 

men to see they carry out such things as burning off of 

heads and so on?---Yes, that is so in my division* 

I suppose you would be surprised to find it suggested by a foreman 
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in the Central Division at Rubicon it was no concern of 

his to see they carried out those precautions?---Yes, I 

would be rather surprised. 

And that it is the responsibility of the district officer?---Yes. 

You referred also to the process usually described as selective logging?--- 

Yes. 

In the course of that process is it any part of your practice or of 

your subordinate officers to see that mill owners cut out 

not only the logs that reduce the profit, but logs that will 

give them some kind of fair return?---I might mention that 

is carried out strictly in the redgum areas. 

It has the effect )  of course, that if you leave the older trees, the 

slightly defective trees, or the over-mature trees, the 

result is going to be you are going to have a forest which 

might become a fire menace?---That is so. 	I might 

mention in connectionwith the milling of redgum the 

amount of utilisation is very much greater than the mill- 

ing in an ash forest. 	You can use quite a lot of regum. 

As you know, there is a large market for house stumps which 

are cut down to 18 inches or 1 ft. long. You have no 

market for that kind of timber in ash. 	Practically any- 

thing that will make timber over the saw is utilised with 

redgum, and timber not actually suitable for milling can 

always be used for sleepers, as we have the sleeper cutters 

following the mill operations inmost cases. 

In that respect you are rather different from other places?---Yes, quite. 

That about the burning off of heads and waste, and so on? Is that zx 

strictly enforced in your area?---Yes, it is 	In the 

river district we sometimes cannot get that done, but a 

flood comes along and the flood does the job as effectively 

as fire. 

Have you any firewood cutters? 	Yes, in many cases the cutters 
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request us not to burn these heads until they are done. 

It then becomes their duty to dispose of the heads. 

Do not the firewood cutters have a habit of leaving the bush rather 

dirty?---In my division they are well trained in that 

respect. 

Vie were told by a district officer in the Otway district that rather 

than leave it to the firewood cutter he would say he was 

not to burn, and they themselves burnt?---I have not 

done that. 	In our firewood areas burning is usually done 

green. 	The fire is started and as the men are working all 

day the tops are burning. 

Can you get a burn then?---Yes, Jam by keeping the fire stoked all the 

time 	We sell practically everything bar the actual 

branches and leaves in those districts. 	The tops are 

sold as house wood, that is a cheap class of house wood. 

We do not allow those -tops to dry because part of them 

would be burnt. 

MR. BARBER: Your Honor, in regard to this matter of dams and their 

introduction I have here a file with copies of selected 

circulars sent to officers. I think perhaps I might put 

the whole file in. 	I propose reading this one which is 

a fairly typical example of the circulars contained on the 

file: It is dated 2nd December, 1936. It reads:- 

"Circular No0692 - 

To officers in charge of districts. 

Please note that the Commission desires action to be taken 

by Officers in charge of districts to provide a more 

adequate supply of water to be used for fire fighting 

purposes. 	It is considered that clams could be constructed 

at strategic parts of the forest at locations remote from 

existing water supplies, which are readily accessible to 

fire fighters, and you are requested to investigate the 

possibilities of this scheme iRlafax insofar as your 

district is concerned. 
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Kind.s.y report on this matter through your District 

Inspector, indicating the proposed location of each dam, its 

capacity L.,nd an estimate of the cost of construction, 	You 

should au.so state whirh are the most important socations, aid 

intimate the order in which you desire the dams constructed," 

THE CON111.36IONE : Is tha, the first time it was taken up? 

lilt. BARER : I do not know, 	It is the first one on this fise, 	Mr. 

Lawrence me he thinks it is the first., 

THE COMMITONER: Mr. 1.Jawrence, is that the first time? 

MR. LAWRENCE: I think so 6 

THE COIL:IIS6IONEE.: Ten years after the 	fire, 

MR. BARBER: Apparently the use of water for bush fires, for borne obscure 

reason has only be en bi.dopted in recent years, 

THE COMMIS a0NM. : It is a mysterious thing to me,  

MR. BARBER: I can understand it in this regard, the old way of putting 

out a fire was by beating and that is sti.d used, 	Another 

way of doing it -0 u.Ld be to have a fire engine with a proper 

pump, but you cannot have fire engines throughout the country, 

Then, it was only of recent years that a portable apparatus 

was invented which could be carried to the fire, En d which was 

effective against fire. 	On top of that you had to wait 

until. somebody with sufficient brain, invented such an apparatus ' 

that cculd be made in sufficient quantities and at a reasonable 

cost, 	Asa matter of fact this is a.L.t anticipating Mr,Torbet„ 

We can get this much more technica.ay from him than from 

anyone else. 

THE C 011.1a S6I ONER: We can 	be very wise after the event, 	I 6uppoue,  

they a.s.wayb rea.l.ised water would put out a fire, but t he 

difficulty was to carry it there, 

R. BARBER: There may have been a sot of other factors to be considered 

before these pumps. I am reminded motor transport has made 

a difference, However, Mr, Torbet wisl deal with that.. 
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(To witness) Is the circular whidl I read out a fairly 

typicai notification the district officers redeived from the 

Head Off ic e y---Yes. 

I do not ;lean  as to dams, but as to various matters affecting fire 

fight 

THE C 0,11,11;:xi-7 ION31 : When you got that circuaar what would you do ?---T e 

officer concerned would immediateiy have to make those 

investigations and submit an estimate of the coat on any 

work of' that nature. 

What would bs the next thing; would you hear no more about it ?- e 

would probably get word to get on with the work straight 

away- , or as much of it as possiba.e. 	I might mention with 

regard to any matter connected with fire, the policy has been„ 

more perticu4arly in recent years, anything in connection 

with that had to take precedence at a certain time of the  year 

If we have to neglect any other work we must not neglect 

fire protection, We were given to understand that. 

rat. akliabi-,: You re putting that a s a change of practioe?—‘-No, just 

that we were told to push on with any works connected with 

the matter of fire prevention. 

THE COlaraSSION' -211: Who to id you?---It was given out Es an instruction from 

the Commi ssi on„ 

Did yo get your instructions in writing•--In that case the instruction 

was given to Ire personaaly. 

By whom?--..By the Chairman of the 0071111i SS ion, 	I happened to be in Head 

Office one day early in the season, and he mentioned that to 

me. He said -Anything in connection with your fire protection 

measures are to be given precedence over any other work". 

I have a.A.ways done that. 

Ifithen was that Y-1, --About three years ago. 

Has there benn anything Ake that said since?---I do not know. 	T  just 

accepted that .kid have gone on that. 

You have never had the formality of a circular on that point?--.. No, 
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It 'Has a verba.v remark by the Chairman•---I think he took it for granted 

we understood tret e  

I suppose he would, too *  

M. GOINANS: He had not just come from the fire fighting conference on 

the 4th November, 1936, had hey—No, 

BARBER: There are other circulars *  Do yaw remember getting a 

circular about  fire .vines about 1934.?---Yes, I do remember that, 

rilhis is dated ,ritt November X931 and reads:-- 

` : Circular 254: 

To Officers in charge of Districts. 

The Commission has issued the following direction in regard 

to standardisation of fire breaks in the indigenour forests: 

1. The width of c4.ear felling aha.1.1 not exceed 16 feet, 

2. Mature trees 111116 SS they ore of a particularly dangerous 

nature sha11 not be fealled„ 

3, 	Irrespective of z he present width, fire breaks shawl 

not be maintained beyond 4.6 ft. wide *  

Officers who are of opinion that sttch a break is not 

suitable to the district which they supervise wi11 submit with 

each appropriation the reasons for t e opinion *  

One reason for this direction id the decline of 

the money avaiiab.L.e. 

It wi.1.l be observedt hat the maintained width of 

fire breaks which are now two, or in some cases three chains 

wide, wi.L.1. be reduced." 

(gage 1965 follow.4), 
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Then in December there is a further circuiar which reads:-

"In addition to the three instructions regarding conEtruction 

and maintenance, a fourth has been added: 	on main fire breaks 

especiacaly aa.ong ridges heavy undergrowth and bracken w1.1.1 be 

slashed and burnt to a width of two chains*" 

I have only one copy of these circular s , which I wi.L.L. hand to 

Gowans for his perusa.. 	They can be • put in and made 

availab.Le s  

MR. GOWANS: Can you te.L.1. the Commission whether you have ve had any 

sustenance reJ.ief available up there for fire protection 

parpose:,?---Yes, we had reJ.ief money _Last year, on the 

maintenance of tracks. 

Was it stipulated you .should applt it to that?--ye s, tip t is so o 

 about how much did you get?---In my division I suppose 0..utogether it 

would not amount to more than £300 *  

Would you have preferred to have used it on anything e.i.se?---No, not at 

that time * 	I might explain on that occasion we were giirmi 

given the priviLege of empioying .Loca.i. men and most of the ioca.z 

men were experienced on that kind of work* 

THE COMMISSIONER: How rainy men did you have on ity--atIt varied; in the 

Bendigo district we had about 8 or 9 men on it. 	I think five 

gangs averaged about 	or ..ever men. 

THE WITNESS WITHDREW. 

MR. BARBER.: Before the Cowission adjourns, might I make one remark in 

regard to that document which I put in, the summary? Mr,Gowans 

seems to take t he view it is a sort of sacred document, .Like 

the Austreuien Constitution, that it was drawn up as the policy 

lax of the Commission and kept in a g.Lass case for years, 

(3-()I' 	St-  Not for yea :•1:; 

, BARBER.: It is something much Imre than a digest of cases, •  it is 

a summary aril was prepared primarily for my convenience, 

to indicate the policy the Commission. has worked out from 

1965, 	 11 1YDE 



time to time as occasion arose, 	I put it in for the assistance 

of Your Honour and Mr, Gowans; but it is not to be taken as 

some th ing 	- SO 

TEL comivasJioNia : It is not year Constitution, 

ME,„ SAB.E.U.3.: It is not to be taken in that way, 	Mr. Gowans 5eera6 to 

think it was. 	That is the way I em putting it„ 

THE OOM1LIS6TON .P...D.TOU MIED UNTIL; MONDAY, 

:.7th 1. LCII,  .1.939 a V 1.0,50,a,m, 

-------- 

1966, 
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